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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying financial statements.
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Key audit matter

T How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(a) Expected credit loss on trade receivables (as described in Note [2 to the financial statements)

The Company has outstanding gross
trade receivables of Rs 328.70 crore as at
March 31, 2024, including overdue / aged
receivables.

The Company supplies electricity to
various types of customers including
individual customers with wide ranging
characteristics in the Northern Odisha.
There exists inherent exposure to credit
risk for these customers. The Company
has acquired this business with effect
from Aprl 01, 2021 and limited past
experiences are available to estimate
credit loss allowance.

The Company has recognised Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) allowance on trade
receivables using its best estimate
considering various factors such as
segregation between government and
non-government consumers, security
deposit available, outcome of the
Company’s effort to reach consumers,
their most recent payment behaviour as
well as the fact that electricity is an
essential commodity and regulations
require consumers to clear old dues to get
continuous electricity etc.

Based on the above mechanism and using
its best estimate, the Company has
accounted ECL provision of Rs 151.32
crore as on the balance sheet date.

The appropriateness of the provision for
expected credit loss is subjective due to
the high degree of judgment applied by
management. Due to the significance of
trade receivables and the related
estimation uncertainty this is considered
to be a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Obtained an understanding of the Company’s
process and tested internal controls associated with
the management’s assessment of determining ECL
allowance for trade receivables.

Obtained an understanding of the management plan
and steps being taken to collect all receivables
including overdue / aged receivables.

Evaluated management’s assessment of
recoverability of the outstanding receivables
including  recoverability of overdue/ aged

receivables through inquiry with management, and
analysis of recent collection trends in respect of
receivables particularly aged receivables.

Evaluated management’s assumption and judgement
relating to collection considering business
environment in which the Company operates and
rights available with the Company to recover amount
due from customers for estimating the amount of
ECL allowance.

Evaluated management’s continuous assessment of
the assumptions used in the credit loss provision
computation. These considerations include whether
there are regular receipts from the customers and the
Company’s past collection history.

Verified mathematical accuracy of provision
computation based on credit loss estimation model
used and other factors considered by the
management.

Assessed the disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtained necessary management representation.
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Key audit matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(b) Accrual of regulatory assets/liabilities for items which are subject matter of true up in tariff
orders (as described in Note 25 to the financial statements)

Being regulated distribution business,
tariff of the Company is determined by
the regulator on cost plus return on equity
basis wherein the cost is subject to
prudential norms. The Company invoices
its customers on the basis of pre-
approved tariff which is subject to true
up.

The Company recognizes revenue at the
amount invoiced to customers based on
pre-approved tariff rates. As the
Company is entitled to a fixed return on
equity and applicable incentives, the
difference  between the revenue
recognised and entitlement as per the
regulation is recognised as regulatory
assets/liabilities. The Company has
recognised regulatory assets of Rs 82.16
crore as at March 31, 2024.

Accruals are determined based on tariff
regulations and past tariff orders and are
subject to verification and approval by
the regulators. Further the costs incurred
are subject to prudential checks and
prescribed norms.

Judgements are made in determining the
accruals including interpretation of tariff
regulations. Further, in the true-up order,
the regulator has observed that certain
expenses booked in the audited accounts
are higher than the approved costs and
disallowed certain expenses. The
regulator has also stated that currently
expenses have been allowed on the basis
of pragmatic approach. The Company is
taking steps considered appropriate by
the management to claim allowance for
disallowed expenses and has treated these
expenses as recoverable/ pass-through to
the customer through subsequent
regulatory orders.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Obtained an understanding of the Company’s
process and tested internal controls associated with
the estimation and recoverability of such regulatory
deferral balances.

Read the tariff regulations and tariff orders and
evaluated relevant clauses to  understand
management’s assessment on allowability of various
income and expenses and consequent recognition/
measurement of regulatory deferral account
balances.

Discussed with the management to understand their
assessment on each qualitative and quantitative
factor and reviewed consistency of the
management’s explanation with the underlying
documentation, rules, and regulations.

Assessed management’s evaluation and true up
review petition and correspondences filed with
regulators for the likely outcome in respect of
material disallowances made by the regulators.

Assessed impact, if any, recognised by the Company
in respect of tariff orders received.

Re-calculated workings obtained from the
management to check arithmetical accuracy of the
calculations.

Assessed disclosures made by the Company in
accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 114
“Regulatory Deferral Accounts.”

Obtained necessary management representation.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Considering judgements involved in
estimating various elements of true up
order and resulting regulatory deferral
account balance, we have determined this
to be a key audit matter.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated: If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
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includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2024 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (1) vi below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (i)
vi below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

(h) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 35 to the financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;
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1.

V1.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the softwares except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for
direct changes to data when using certain access rights, as described in note 46 to the
financial statements. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting softwares.

ForSRBC & COLLP For SRB & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory

requirements” of our report of even date

Re: TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited (“the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(M)

(i)

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management
during the year but there is a regular programme of verification of all the Property, Plant and
Equipment over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with the planned programme, a
portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment was verified during the year. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not hold any land in its name. As regard the buildings, thereon, the
Company retains operational rights over the buildings used for the purpose of carrying out
distribution business under a license granted by the Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission.
Thus, verification of title deeds is not applicable for such buildings.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during
the year ended March 31, 2024.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable and the coverage and the procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for
each class of inventory were not noticed on such physical verification.

(b) As disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal
course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company
with such banks are in agreement with the unaudited books of accounts of the Company. The
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(iii)

(iv)

Company does not have sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate
from financial institutions during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the
Company.

(a) During the year, the Company has provided unsecured loans to its employees as follows:

{Amount in Rs. Crores

Particulars Loans

Agpregate amount provided during the year

- Employees 6.38

Balancing outstanding as at balance sheet date
in respect above cases (post-acquisition of
business)

Employees 2.55

During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee and provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or party other
than as mentioned above.

(b) During the year, the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of
loans are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. Further, during the year, the Company has not
made investments, provided guarantees, provided security and granted loans and advances in the
nature of loan to firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other party.

(c) The Company has granted loans during the year to employees where the schedule of repayment
of principal has been stipulated and the repayment of receipts are regular.

(d) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the
same parties.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

_There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security given by the Company post-acquisition

of business in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
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applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, related to the service of distribution of electricity, and are of the opinion that
prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not,
however, made a detailed examination of the same.

(vii)  (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess
and other statutory dues applicable to it though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. According
to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. During the year, the Company
did not have any undisputed dues towards sales-tax, service tax, duty of excise, duty of customs and
value added tax.

(b) The dues of provident fund and services tax have not been deposited on account of any dispute,
are as follows:

Amount | Period to which
Name of the | . Forum where
Nature of dues (Rs in | the amount relates | . .
statute [ | . . dispute is pending
| | crores) (Financial Year)
The Finance Act, | Service tax | 2534 | FY 2014-15 to FY | CESTAT, Kolkata
1994 2017-18
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax : 44.73 | FY 2016-17 and FY | Commissioner
1961 2017-18 (Appeals) — Income
Tax

There are no dues of goods and services tax, employees' state insurance, sales-tax, customs duty,
excise duty, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

(viii)  The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
f age We tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year,
Co
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(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of

interest thereon to any lender

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or

government or any government authority.
(¢) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

{(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has

been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13

of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

(a) The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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(xiii)

(Xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (as amended) where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

.The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected

with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-TA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Group has
five CICs which are registered with the Reserve Bank of India and two CICs which are not required
to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year as well as in the immediately
preceding financial year respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement
to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guérantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
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(xx) (a) Tn respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with
second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note
31.2 to the financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act.
This matter has been disclosed in note 31.2 to the financial statements.

(xxi) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of TP
Northern Odisha Distribution Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of TP Northern
Odisha Distribution Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
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of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial

statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonabie
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect

on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections “of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL
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TP NORTHERN ODI{SHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

CIN:U401090R2021PLC035951

Januganj, Balasore, Odisha, India, 756019

Website: www.tpnodl.com

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

¥ in crores
. As at As at
Particulars NoteS  March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
{Audited) {Audited)
A. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 2,907.84 2,058.65
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5 453.77 415.66
(c) Intangible assets 6 72.67 50.60
(d) Financial assets 7 401.17 381.16
(e) Non-current tax assets (net) 9 27.74 2821
{f} Other non-current assets 10 19.41 49.42
Total non-current assets (1) 3,882.60 2,983.70
{2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 11 57.04 53.97
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 12 177.38 259.86
(i) Unbilled revenue 305.29 295.72
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 376.94 248.82
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 13 1,089.28 95393
(v) Other financial assets 14 4517 28.08
(c) Other current assets 15 23.72 23.76
Total current assets (2) 2,074.82 1.864.14
(3) Total assets before regulatory deferral account (1+2) 5,957.42 4,847.84
(4) Regulatory deferral account - Asset 25 82.16 -
(5) Total assets (3+4) 6,039.58 4,847.84
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 16 564.05 398.15
(b) Other equity 17 322.55 189.59
Total equity (1) 886.60 587.74
Liabilities
{2) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
Borrowings 21 507.60 226.09
(b) Provisions 18 25591 158.14
(c) Capital grant and consumer contribution towards capital assets 19 137417 1,079.76
(d) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 8 19.54 20.29
(e) Other non-current liabilities 20 736.13 572.98
Total non-current liabilities (2) 2,893.35 2,064.26
{3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21 132.46 205.31
(ii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 22 55.03 15.14
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 22 536.61 587.64
(iii} Other financial liabilities 23 1,378.96 1,237.51
(b) Provisions 18 16.90 15.80
(c) Other current liabilities 24 120.42 121.39
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 9 19.25 4.69
Total current liabilities (3) 2,259.63 2,187.48
(4) Total liabilities (2+3) 5,152.98 4,251.74
(5) Regulatory deferral account- liability 25 - 8.36
(6) Total equity and liabilities (1+4+5) 6.039.58 4,847.84
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
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TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLC035951
Januganj, Balasore, Odisha, India, 766019
Website: www.tpnodl.com

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Zin crores
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars NoteS  March31,2024  March 31,2023
l. Revenue from operations 26 3,757.41 3,340.18
.  Otherincome 27 127.37 112.47
lll.  Total income (i+II) 3,884.78 3,452.65
IV. Expenses
Cost of power purchased and transmission charges 28 2,504.72 2,240.22
Employee benefits expense (net) 29 467 22 395.92
Finance costs 30 102.53 68.25
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4&6 169.96 105.09
Other expenses 31 50545 470.27
Total expenses (IV) 3,749.88 3,279.75
V.  Profit before movement in regulatory deferral balance and tax (lli-1V) 134.90 172.90
Add/(Less): Net movement in regulatory deferral balances 25 46.32 (31.61)
Add: Deferred tax Recoverable/(Payable) (0.76) 9.37
VL. Profit before tax 180.46 150.66
VIl. Tax expenses
(1) Current tax 32 40.31 29.03
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier period 32 794 (3.41)
(3) Deferred tax charge 32 6.48 9.37
(4) Deferred tax in respect of earlier year 32 (7.23) -
47.50 34.99
Vill. Profit for the year (VI-V1I) 132.96 115.67
IX. Other Comprehensive Income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (net) =
X.  Total Comprehensive Income for the year (Vill+IX) 132.96 115.67
XI. Earnings Per Equity Share [Excluding Regulatory income/(expense) (net)]
Basic and Diluted (in ¥) 36 419 4.48
Earnings Per Equity Share [Including Regulatory income/(expense) (net)]
Basic and Diluted (in %) 36 3.33 3.91

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
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TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLC035951
Januganj, Balasore, Odisha, India, 756019
Website: www.tpnodl.com

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Accounting Policy

Cash flows from operating activities are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated and presented separately. The Company considers all highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value to be

cash equivalents.

Zin crores

Particulars

Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities

Profit before tax 180.46 150.66
Adjustments to reconcile profit and loss before tax to net cash flows:
Interest income from bank deposits (84.51) (48.46)
Amortisation of consumer contribution and grants (91.75) (85.28)
Income from delayed payment charge (13.15) (17.21)
Allowance for doubtful debts 60.78 64.98
Loss on retirement of property, plant and equipment 0.70 0.12
Provisions for claims and compensation 1.04 1.59
Depreciation and amortisation expense 169.96 105.09
Finance costs (net of capitalisation) 102.53 68.25
Transfer to tariff balancing reserve 3.28 -
Operating profit before working capital changes 329.34 239.74
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Inventories (3.07) (39.83)
Trade receivables 21.71 (50.72)
Unbilled revenue (9.57) (68.19)
Other financial assets - current (16.55) (12.48)
Other financial assets - non current (0.44) 0.07
Other current assets 0.04 (3.72)
Other non-current assets {0.08) =
Movement in operating assets (7.96) (174.87)
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables (11.14) 66.06
Other financial liabilities - current (53.24) 24.38
Other current liabilities (0.97) 15.65
Other non-current liabilities (5.08) 23.80
Provisions - current 0.06 (0.38)
Provisions - non current 97.77 24.92
Regulatory deferral account (90.53) 30.94
Movement in operating liability (63.13) 185.37
Cash generated in operations 258.25 250.24
Taxes paid (net of refund) (33.22) (19.37)
Net Cash flows generated from Operating Activities* (A) 225.03 230.87
B. Cash flow from Investing Activities
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment (including capital work in
progress and capital advances net off capital creditors) (578.55) (598.14)
Capital expenditure on intangible asset (42.04) (37.48)
Delayed payment charge received 13.15 17.21
Interest received 83.97 46.70
Deposits made with banks not considered as cash and cash equivalents (1,450.47) (1,230.60})
Deposits matured with banks not considered as cash and cash eguivalents 1,295.54 1,036.51
Net Cash flows used in Investing Activities (B) (678.40) (765.80)




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLC035951
Januganj, Balasore, Odisha, India, 756019
Website: www.tpnodl.com

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

T in crores
Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{Audited) (Audited)
C. Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 84.61 52.63
Interest paid on security deposit (44.62) (24.13)
Interest paid on bank loan and other borrowing cost (51.95) (26.29)
Proceeds from consumer security deposits (net) 87.65 188.01
Proceeds from contribution for capital works (net) 92.21 54.16
Proceeds from subsidies towards cost of capital assets (net) 204.92 186.21
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 320.68 237.47
Repayment of long-term borrowings (11.38) -
Proceeds/(Repayment) from short term borrowings (net) (100.64) (39.02)
Net cash flows generated from Financing Activities (C) 581.48 629.04
D. Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 128.12 94.11
E. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 248.82 154.71
F. Cash and cash equivalents at year end (Refer Note 13) 376.94 248.82
G. Non-cash financing and investing activities:
Issuance of equity shares for Considerations other than Cash (Refer Note 16) 81.29 50.57

*Net cash flow used in operating activities includes an amount of ¥ 3.87 crores (March 31, 2023: ¥ 1.89 crore) towards corporate
social responsibility

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
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TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401030R2021PLC035951
Januganj, Balasore, Odisha, India, 756019
Website: www.tpnodl.com

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars No of Shares Rli\l:n;t:’rr\;s)
Balance as at April 1, 2023 39,81,48,300 398.15
Issued during the year 16,59,00,000 165.90
Balance as at March 31, 2024 56,40,48,300 564.05
Particulars No of Shares (??r:n(;l::;s)
Balance as at April 1, 2022 29,49,43,600 294.95
Issued during the year 10,32,04,700 103.20
Balance as at March 31, 2023 39,81,48,300 398.15
B. Other Equity
. Retained Earninas Total

Particulars (¥ in crores) (Z in crores)
Balance as at April 1, 2023 189.59 189.59
Profit for the year 132,96 132.96
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 3 g
Total comprehensive income 132.96 132.96
Balance as at March 31, 2024 322.55 322.55
Particulars Retair!ed Eamings : Total

(¥ in crores) {Z in crores)
Balance as at April 1, 2022 73.92 73.92
Profit for the year 115.67 115.67
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income 115.67 115.67
Balance as at March 31, 2023 189.59 189.59

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
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TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLC035951
Januganj, Balasore, Qdisha, India, 756019
Website: www.tpnodl.com

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 1 Corporate Information

TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited ("TPNODL" or the "Company™) is a public fimited company, domiciled and incorporated in India and is engaged in the
business of distribution of electricity in Northern Odisha. The Company has been incorporated on March 20, 2021 under the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended)
Pursuant to vesting order issued by the Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission ('OERC’) dated March 25, 2021, the Company acquired the business of
distributing power in Northern Odisha (‘business’) from the Northern Electricity Supply Company of Odisha Limited ('NESCO') with effect from April 1, 2021
(vesting date). Accordingly, the Company is a licensee to carry out the function of distribution and retail supply of electricity covering the distribution circles of
Balasore, Bhadrak, Baripada, Jajpur and Keonjhar in the state of Odisha for a period of 25 years effective from April 1, 2021, which also marked the
commencement of commercial operations for the Company

The registered office of the company is located at The Corporate Office Of NESCO, Januganj Balasore , Odisha 756019

The Company is subsidiary of The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) which halds 51% equity shares and balance 49% equity shares are held by GRIDCO
Ltd

NOTE 2 Material Accounting Policies
21 Statement of compliance

The financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) read with seclion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended from time to time). The Company also
applies requirement of Division Il to Schedule [l of the Companies Act 2013, while presenting financial statements. During the year, certain amendments
to Ind AS have become applicable and been adopted by the Company. However, their applications did not have any material impact on financiat position
and financial performance of the Company.
2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured
at fair value

- certain financial assets and liabilities measured al fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)

- employee benefit expenses (refer note 18 for accounting policy)
The financial statements are presenled in  and all values are rounded to the nearest crores (  '00,00,000), except when otherwise indicated.
The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

NOTE 3 Other Material Accounting Policies, critical accounting estimates and judgements

Accounting policies are sel out along with respective explanatory notes where it specifically relates to such transactions or balances. Other significant accounting
policies are set out below:

3.1 Foreign currencies
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (), which is the functional currency of the Company.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at functional currency spot rates at the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
Foreign cumrency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the Balance Sheet date and exchange
gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognised in lhe Statement of Profit and Loss

3.2 Current versus non-current classlfication
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operaling cycle,

- held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current
A liability is current when:
- itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
- itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities

The operating cycle is the lime between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

3.3 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

Except for trade receivables, financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Trade receivables are measured at the
transaction price determined in accordance with Ind AS 115. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assels
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs direclly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Effectlve interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest income or expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exaclly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial
instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
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3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.3

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety al either amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss or fair value
through other comprehensive income, depending on the classification of the financial assels

Financial assets at amortised cost

A ‘financial asset' is measured at the amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(i) the asset is held wilhin a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and

(ii) contraclual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP!) on the principal
amount outstanding

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL}
Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (debt instruments)

A ‘financial assel' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both the following criteria are met:

(a) the objective of the business model is achieved bolh by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
(b) the assets contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Impairment of financial asset
The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, trade
receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or olher financial asset not designated as al FVTPL.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transaclions Lhat are within the scope of Ind AS
115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers", the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses
using the simplified approach permitted under Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments"

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as
permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment

Derecognition of financial asset
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.-removed
from the Company's balance sheet) when:

(i) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

(i) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing
involvement. In that case, lhe Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained

Offsetting of financial asset

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loan and borrowings, payables, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, security deposit from electricily
consumers, consumer contributions for work under progress, capital creditors etc.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or ioss

(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial

recognition as at fair value through profit or [oss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only
if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognised in OCL. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equily. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial
liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings})

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of lhe EIR

The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 21.

~



TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLC035951
Januganj, Balasore, Odisha, India, 756019
Website: www.tpnodl.com

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

354

3.55

3.6

37

38

3.9

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in lhe assets of an enlity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity inslruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs

Derocgnition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Fair value measuramant

Fair value is the price that would be received to seil an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the lransaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of refevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inpuls.

All assels and liabililies for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised wilhin the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabililies.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

Extemal valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and other assets/ liabilities acquired as part of business combination.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and
risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above

Lease Accounting

At inception of contract, the Company assesses whether the Contract is or contains a lease. A contract is or contains a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that
contains a lease component, the Company aliocates consideration in the contract to each lease component on lhe basis of their relative standalone
pnce.

As a Lessee

Right-of-use Assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses , and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
and estimate of costs to dismantle. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

Lease Liabllities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
tease term. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company generally uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the discount rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable,

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
The carrying amount is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in index or rate. In addition, the carmrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset

Short term Ieases and leases of low value of assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to ils short-term leases. It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and Ieases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term

Dividend

The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorised, and the distribution is no longer
at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity,

Govemment grants

Govemment grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensale, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of
the related asset.

(fec i Beic. 1
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Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method The cost of an acquisition 1s measured as the aggregate of the consideration
transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-conlrolling interests in the acquiree Acquisition-related costs are
expensed in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are received, with (he exception of the cosls of issuing debt or equity securities
that are recognised in accordance with Ind AS 32 and Ind AS 109

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose,
the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irespective of
the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combinalion are measured at the basis indicated below:

- Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance
with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively

- Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the acquisition
are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12

- When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host conlracts by the acquiree.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Company re-assesses whether
it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be
recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration
transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase,
the entity recognises the gain direclly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For lhe purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company's cash-generating units Lhat are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of lhe acquiree are assigned to those units

A cash generaling unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carying amount, lhe impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill as well as other assets, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

if the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Company reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the
measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that exisled at
the acquisition date thal, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period
adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date

New and amended standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 daled March 31, 2023 to amend the
following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company applied for the first-time these amendments

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors, It has
also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company's financial statements.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their
‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose Lheir ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept

of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of
any items in the Company's financial statements

Critical ti i and ji

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, management of the Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumplions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis
of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements

The areas involving critical eslimates or judgements are:

Estimates related to accrual of regulatory deferrals and revenue recognition (refer note 25 and 26)
Estimation of expected credit loss {refer note 12)

Estimation of defined benefit obligation (refer note 18)

Estimations of tax expense and balances (refer note 32)

5 Estimation of provision required toward litigation and other claims against the Company (refer note 35)

BwWN

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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NOTE 4
4.01

Property, plant and equipment :
Accounting Policy :

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes purchase price (net
of trade discount and rebates) and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Ind AS 23. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Depreciation on regulated assets
Depreciation commences when an asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment in respect of electricity business of the Company covered under Part B of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,
has been provided on the straight line method at the rates specified in vesting order and tariff regulation notified by regulatory commission. In tariff regulation, 2022
notified in December, 2022 which shall remain in force for control period FY 2023-24 to FY 2027-28, the regulatory commission has changed useful life of certain
assets and has provided that depreciation shall be provided as per rates notified in these regulations for first 15 years and remaining depreciable value after a
period of 15 years shall be spread over the balance useful life of the assets.

Rate of depreciation of the property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Rate (Assets Rate (New assets
transferred on acquired post

Type of asset acquisition) acquisition)
Buildings 1.80% 3.34%

Plant and equipment including transmission lines & cable network 3.80% 4.67%
Office equipment (IT Equipments) 9.00% 15%
Furniture and fixtures 4.55% 6.33%
Dffice equipment 9% 6.33%
Vehicles 12.86% 9.50%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. Based on the Vesting Order/ tariff regulations, the residual value of the assets acquired post-acquisition is considered at
10% of the Original Cost and 5% of the Original Cost on assets transferred on acquisition.

Depreciation on meters
Depreciation on single phase smart meters and other meters has been provided in the straight line method at an useful life of 8 years and 5 years respectively.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipments is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-
generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future post tax cash flows are discounted to their present value using a appropriate discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are

taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to
which the individual assets are allocated.

Impairment losses of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLC035951
Januganj, Balasore, Odisha, India, 756019
Website: www.tpnodl.com

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 6

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Rate
(New assets

Type of asset .
acquired post

Software 30%

Derecognition

An item of intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of intangible asset is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of Intangible assets (refer note 4.01)

¥ in crores
Description Computer software Total
Gross Block
Balance as at April 01, 2022 19.42 19.42
Additions 37.48 37.48
Deletions - “
Balance as at April 01, 2023 (A) 56.90 56.90
Additions 42.18 42.18
Deletions (0.18) (0.18)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (B) 98.90 98.90
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance as at April 01, 2022 1.16 1.16
Amortisation expense 5.14 5.14
Elimination on disposal - -
Balance as at April 01, 2023 (C) 6.30 6.30
Amortisation expense 19.96 19.96
Elimination on disposal (0.03) (0.03)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (D) 26.23 26.23
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2024 (B-D) 72.67 72.67
As at March 31, 2023 [A-C) 50.60 50.60




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLC035951
Januganj, Balasore, Odisha, India, 756019
Website: www .tpnodl.com

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
NOTE 7 Financial assets - non current Zin crores Ziin crores
(Unsecured and considered good, at amortised cost)
Deposits with banks- earmarked balances™ 386 85 36728
Qther receivables 664 659
Security Deposit-to various authorities 768 729
401.17 381.16
- Earmarked balances against government grants/consumer contribution for work under progress
As at As at
NOTE 8 Deferred tax liabilities (net) (refer note no 32) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Zin crores Zin crores
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 1954 2029
19.54 2029
NOTE 9 Tax assets / (liabilities) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
9.1 Non-curront lax assets Tin crores Zin crores
Advance income tax/ tax deducted at source (net of provision) 2774 2821
Total non-currant tax assets 27.74 28.21
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
9.2 Current tax liabilities (net) Tin crores Zin crores
Income Tax Payable 1925 469
Total current tax liabilities (net) 19.25 4.89
As at As at
NOTE 10 Other non-current assets March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Zin crores Zin crores
(Ui d and i good at ised cost)
(2) Receivable From State Government 210 203
(b} Capital advances 4.46 3454
(c) Others™ 1285 1285
19.41 4942

“ includes amount recoverable from suppliers etc.

NOTE 11 Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)

Accounting policy

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV) Cost of inventory includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition Costs of inventories are determined on moving weighted average basis

NRYV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less esti d costs of ion and the esti costs y to make the sale
Unserviceable/damaged stores and spares are identified and written down based on technical svaluation

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥ in crores ¥in crores
Stores and spares 57 04 5397
Total inventories 57.04 53.97
Note: Refer note 21 for charge created against boowings
NOTE 12 Trade receivables-Current (At amortised cost)
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥in crores Tin crores
Unsecured, Considered good 160.17 21937
Significant increase in cradd nsk 168 53 13103
328.70 350.40
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts {expected credit loss) 151.32 8054
Total Trade receivables (net) 177.38 259.86




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLC035951
Januganj, Balasore, Cdisha, India, 756019
Website: www.tpnodl.com

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Note

vi

vii

The Company holds security deposits from consumers amounting to 883 47 crares (March 31 2023: ¥ 795 BZ crores)

Refer Nole 21 for charge crealed against borrowings

The management has formulaled a mechanism for receiving and addressing customer complainls including lhose related to billing and receivables outstanding The managemenl
has rdentifiad dispuled receivables basis information available wilth the Company

Trade recaivables include amount of 168 53 crores {March 31,2023 ¥ 131 03 crores) from consumers who are inaclive/ permanenlly disconnected, temporarily disconnectad/
ware non-governmeanl/ low-paying or non-paying and/or disputed

The Company has acquired power distribulion business of NESCO w.e.f April 01, 2021 The management beiieves that coliection dala related lo pre-acquisition penod 1s not
relevant to assess expected credit loss (ECL) allowance on receivables in the post-acquisilion period. In this scenario, the Company has recognised Expected Credil Loss (ECL)
allowance on trade receivables using its best eslimale considering amang other aspects faclors such as segregation belween government and non-government consumers, sscurity
deposil available, outcome of the Company s efforl lo reach consumers, their most recent paymenl behaviour as well as Lhe fact that electricily 1s an essential commodity and
regulalions will require consumers lo clear old dues to get conlinuous eleclrcily

Post-acquisilion of power distribulion business from the NESCO, Lhe Company s continuous endeavour has been to reduce AT&C losses, reduce provisional billing and improve
collection through belter reach lo consumers as well as other measures In the process, the Company had inilially faced several challenges including more than one Covid waves,
Cyclones and delays in appoiniment/ working of melering, billing and colleclion (MBC) agencies for reasons beyond conlrol of the Company The Company successfully deall with
these challenges It 1s conlinuously working loward reducing provisional billing and improving overall collection efficiency by changing paymenl behaviour of consumers The
management 1s confident it will be able lo collect most of Lhe ot ing les as it i its reach lo the consumers and alse considenng thal eleclricily is an essenlial
commodity for all consumers Accordingly the management believes the above ECL allowance reflects best estimate and Is appropriale as per Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments

Trade receivables aguing scheduls as at March 31, 2024

i Less than & 6 Months - 1
Particulars - 5 Total
Months* Year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) Undisputed trade receivables
a) Considered good 6704 3428 4145 17 40 - 160 17
b} Significant increase n credit risk 2427 2893 7411 3577 - 163 08
(i) Disputed trade receivablas
a) Considered good - - - - =
b) Sianificanl increase In credil risk - . 545 - 545
91.31 £3.21 121,01 5317 - 328.70
Trade recoivables ogeing schedule as at March 31, 2023
i Less than 8 6 Months - 1
Particulars - 5 Total
Months* Yoar 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 yaars
(i) Undisputed tradae receivables
a) Considered good 17144 4390 . - . 21534
b} Sighilicant inereass in oedid sk - 46 94 76 09 - a 12303
(ii) Disputed trade recaivables
a) Cansidered good - 403 - E = 403
b) Sianificanl increase in credit risk > 800 - = - 800
|Total 17144 10287 VE.08 - . 350.40

Mats Trade /calvabla sgeing schedule has been prepared from the date of acquisition of business by the Company
The ageing has been reanrad after adjusting Lhe collactions in accordance with the Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission Distribution (Conditions of Supply) Code, 2019

- includes amount not dug as at March 31, 2024 and March 31,2023

Movement in the allowance for doubtful trade receivables As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Tin crores €in crores
Balance at the baginning of the year 9054 2556
Add: Expecled credit lossas for the year (Refer Note 31) 60.78 6498
Balance at the end of the year 151.32 90.54

NOTE 13 Cash and Bank balances

Accounting policy

131 Cash and cash equivalenls comprise cash at banks and on hand and shor-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk

of changes in value Cash and cash equivalents include balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage

For the purpose of the Stalement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank, cash / cheques on hand and shorl-lerm deposils, as defined above

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥in crores ¥in crores
132 Cash and cash aquivalent
(a) Balances with banks - on currenl accounts 122 02 86 42
{b) Deposits wilh banks with original maturily of Jess than three months 24253 139 00
{(c) Cashon hand 1239 2340
Total cash and cash equivalents 37684 24882
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TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLC035951
Januganj, Balasore, Odisha, India, 756019
Website: www tpnodl.com

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2 in crores tin crores
133 Other balances with banks (At amortised cost)
[{] Dsposits wilh banks” 1,089.28 953,93
1,080.28 953.93

-Includes earmarked balances against consumer security deposits amounling ta ¥ 328 02 crores (March 31 2023 ¥ 330 88 crores)
Short-term deposits are made for varying penods of between one day and lhree months, depending on lhe immediate cash reguirements of the Company, and earn inlerest al the
respective short-term deposit rates

As at March 31 2024 the Company had available 2 515 16 crores (March 31 2023 2 56523 zrotes! of undraw commitiog bl
The Company has pledged a parl of its shorl term deposits Lo fulfill collaleral requirements Refer to Mota 21 for further details

134 Changes in liability arising from fi i ivities and h ing and i ing
Tin cromes
Cash Flows
. As at Other
Particul. X 7 31, 2024
articulars April 1, 2023 Proceads Payment transactions* Azt parch
Security deposils from elaclricity consumers 795 82 8785 . . 883 47
Cantrbution for capital works 124533 92 21 = 155.15 1492 69
Subsidies towards cost of capital assal 51729 20452 - 113:21) 707 00
Bank overdraft {nel payment during the year) 193 95 2 110084} a 93 30
Long lerm borrowings 2arar 32068 {11.38) - 546 77
Toial 2,059.88 T05.46 {112.02)} 138.94 3,72323
P in crotes
) Asat Sah Floms Other
|Particulars
ant April 1, 2022 Procesds Payment | transactions+ | AS 2t Mareh 31, 2023
Securily deposils from electricily consumers # 607 A2 188 01 - 10011 795 82
Contnbulion for capital works 1,085 92 5416 - 105 25 1,245 33
|Bubsidras towards coat of crepitel assal 35242 186 21 - {2134 51729
Bank overdrall (nel payment during the year) 226.72 . (39 02) 625 193 95
Long term borrowinas - 237 47 . - 23747
Total 2,272.88 865.85 [33:02) 2015 2,080.08
“Includes h i like isation of upfront fees an term loan, isation of deposit el et
NOTE 14 Other financial assets - current As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Unsecured and considered goed, at amortised cost) Tin crores ¥in crores
(a) Advance lo slaff 276 350
(b) Income accrued bul nol due 230 176
{c) Olher recelvables (includes receivable from Collection Agencies) 40 11 2282
4517 28.08
NOTE 15 Other current assets As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{Unsecured and considerad good, at amortisad cost) Cin crores T in crores
(a) Advances lo olhers (includes advance lo vendors and prepaid expenses) 2372 2376
2372 2378
A T




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

CIN:U401090R2021PLC035951

Januganj, Balasore, Odisha, India, 756019

Website: www.tpnodl.com

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. Z in crores No. ¥ in crores
NOTE 16 Share capital
Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 1,00,00,00,000 1,000.00 1,00,00,00,000 1,000.00
1.00,00.00.000 1.000.00 1,00,00,00,000 1,000.00
Issued, subscribed capital:
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each (fully paid up) 56,40,48,300 564.05 39,81,48,300 39815
Total issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 56,40,48 300 564.05 39,81,48,300 398.15
a. Reconciliation of shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. ¥ in crores No. ¥ in crores
Equity shares
Al the beginning of the year 39,81,48,300 398.15 29,49,43,600 294,94
Issued during the year 16,59.00.000 165.90 10,32.04,700 103.20
Outstanding at the end of the year 56,40,48,300 564.05 39,81.48,300 398.15

b. Rights, preference and restrictions attached to shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital:
Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of & 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. The share holders are entitled
to dividend declared on proportionate basis. On liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amountls in proportion to their shareholding

c. Details of share holders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at
March 31, 2023

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid As at

March 31, 2024

MName of the Shareholder % change in
No of Shares % of Holding No of Shares % of Holding  holding during
the year
A. The Tata Power Company Ltd (Holding company) 28,76,64,633 51.00% 20,30,55,633 51.00% 0%
B. GRIDCO Ltd {Company having significant influence) 27,63,83,667 49,00% 19,50,92,667 49.00% 0%
Total 56,40,48,300 100.00% 39,81,48,300 100.00% 0%

d.  Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash.

The Company has allolted equity shares as fully paid for considerations received in form of distribution assets, pursuant to shareholder's agreement and the Government of Odisha
notifications. The value of distribution assets have been determined by an independent valuer.

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of Shares Mo. of Shares
Aggregate Equity-shares issued in lieu of proparty plant and equipment 15,38.83,667 7.25.92 667
e. Shareholding of Promoters
Discl e of shareholding of pr s as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:
N % change
No. of Shares as at Change during the Mo, of Shares as at % of
f
Name of promoter March 31, 2024 year March 31,2023 Total Shares
A. The Tata Power Company Ltd 28,76,64,633 8,46,09,000 20,30,55,633 51% 0%
8. GRIDCO Ltd 27,63,83,867 8,12.91,000 19,50,92,667 49% 0%
Total 55i40.48!3lltl 16,58,00,000 38 31!435300 100% 0%
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:
Promoters No. of Shares as at Change during the No. of Shares as at % of % change
March 31, 2023 year March 31,2022  Total Shares
A. The Tata Power Company Ltd 20,30,55,633 5,26,34,397 15,04,21,236 51% 0%
B. GRIDCO Ltd 19,50,92 667 5,05,70,303 14,4522 364 49% 0%
Total 39,81,48,300 10,32,04,700 29 49343.500 100% 0%
As at As at
NOTE 17 Other equity March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
¥ in crores #in crores
Retained earnings
Balance at beginning of year 189.59 73.92
Add: Profit for the year 132.96 115.67
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net) _ = 3 -
Balance as at the end of the year 322.55 189.59

Nature and purpose of reserves:

Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profils/(loss) that the Company has arnedfincurred til date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividend or olher distributions paid to sharghalders. -
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NOTE 18 Provisions

181

182

Accounting Policy

Provisions are recognised when lhe Company has a present obligalion {legal or construclive) as a resull of a pasl event. it s probable thal lhe Company will be required (o sellle lhe
obligation and a reliable eslimale can be made of the amount of Ihe obligalion The amounl recognized as a provision is the besl estimale of the consideration required lo sellle he
present obligalion al the end of the reporting period laking into account lhe risks and uncertainties surrounding he obligation. When a provision 15 measured using lhe cash flows.
estimaled to sellle the presenl obligation ils carrying amounl 1s the present value of lhose cash flows (when the effect of Lhe tme value of money is malerial) The impact of unwinding
presanl value delermine s recognised in Lhe slalement of profil and loss

Present obligations arising under onerous conlracls are recognized and measured 3s provisions wilh charge o tha staternenl of profit and loss An onerous contracl is considerad lo axst
where lhe Company has a conlract under which the unavoidable cosls of meeling Lhe obligations will exceed the eccnomic benefils expecled to be received from lhe conlract

Defined contribution plans

Paymenls lo defined conlribulion relirement benelil plans are recognized as an expense when employees have rendered sarvice enlilling them lo the benefit if the contribulion payable
1 lhe schema for service recewed on or before lhe balance sheet dale exceeds he contribulion already paid lhe deficil payable to the scheme is recognised as a liabdly afler deducling
the contribulion already paid If the contribulion already pawl exceeds (he conlribution due for services received on or before the balance sheel dale lhen excess Is recognised as an
assel lo (he exiant that lhe pre-payment will lead to for example a reduction in future paymenl or a cash refund

Definad Banefits plans

The cost of providing benefils under lhe defined benefil plan 1s determined using the projecled unil credil melhod Remeasurements comprising of acluarial gains and losses lhe effect

of the asset celling, excluding amounls mncluded in nel interest on the net defined banefit liability and the relurn on plan assels (excluding amounts included in nel inlerest on the net

defined bensfil liabilily), are recognized immediately In the balance shesl with a corresponding debit or credit lo retained sarnings lhrough OCI n (he period in which lhey occur
are not ified Lo profit or loss in subsequent periods

Past service cosls are recognized in the stalement of profit and loss on the earlier of
- The date of lhe plan amendment or curlaiment and
- The dale thal lhe Company recognizes relaled reslrucluring cosls

Net interest is calculaled by applying lhe discount rate o the nel defined benefil liabllily or assel The Company recognizes the following changes in the net definad benelit obligation as
an expense in the slalement of profil and loss

- Service cosls comprising current service cosls past-service costs, gains and losses on curlaiments and non-rouline setllements: and

- Nel interesl expense or income

Othor current and othar L benefits

A liabilily is recognized for current benefits accruing lo employees in respecl of wages and salaries, annual |leave and sick leave in the period in which the relaled service is rendered al
{he undiscounted amount of lhe benefils expecled lo be paid in exchange for that service Liabililies recagnized in respecl of current employee benefits are measured al the undiscounled
amount of the benafits expected to be paid in exchangs for the relaled service

The cost of providing olher long-term employee benefils including earned leave sick lsave and other benefits, 15 delermined using the projected unil credit melhod The relaled
expenses including remeasurement gains and losses are recognized in the stalement of profit and loss

The Company operales a scheme for Compensated absences wherein the employee is enlitled la aval leave benefils as per the palicy of the Company. The leave benefits ara finked lo
(he salary of the employee and lhe employee is enlilled to either avail paid Isave or encash unuliised (eave either during employment or on retirement. The liabilily for compensaled
absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valualion done by an independenl actuary at the reporling period end The Company treats accumulated leave expecled lo be carried
forward beyond twelve moniths. as long-term employee benefil for measurement purposes. Remeasurement/ Acluarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the slalement of
proftt and loss

Pro sequisition (inbiiitias af 1 fram jle MESCO -
The lerms of lhe Vesting Order as modified by lhe Carve Out Qrder provide that for enlire liabiilies loward pension, gratuity and of relried before lhe
acquisition dale and acquisition dale liabdilies of linuing on the isilion dale, the Company's responsibility is limiled only lo remitling fixed amount requested by the

respactive Trusls and the same wil be allowed to be recovered from consumers for disbursal to the beneficiaries covered under lhe Trusts Tha Company has recognized amount
payabte to the Trusts for Lhe currenl year for onward payment of the said liabilities are charged as an expenss as lhey fall due

Posl-acquisition dale liabilities of smployees who were in service employees on the acquisition date are accounted for either s defined benefil plan or other long term employee benefil
basis nalure of lhe benefit

Defined contribution plans

Erstwhile NESCO Employees

Provident Fund Plan

The Company's contributions loward providenl fund of lhe eligible is iled under Lhe Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Acl, 1952 The provident
fund is operated by the regional provident fund commissioner Under lhe scheme, the Company is required to conlribule & specified percentage of payroll cost 1o lhe retirement benafit
scheme to fund the benefits The Company does not have any further cbligalion under the plan

Other than Erstwhile NESCO utility Employess

Providant Fund Plan

Tha Compeny makes contributions loward Provident Fund of qualifying employses which is a definad contribulion plan The Company's contribution 1o the Employees Providenl Fund is
deposiled under the Employees Providenl Fund and Miscetlaneous Provisions Act, 1952 which is recognized by the Income Tax Authorities and operaled by the Regional Providenl Fund
Commissioner Under lhe scheme, lhe Company is required to conlribule a specified percentage of payroll cost to Lhe retirement benefit schemne to fund the benefits The Company does
nol have any further obligation under the plan

Employes Stats Insumnco

The Company makes Employee Stale Insurance {'ESI') scheme contribulions to defined contribution plans for eligible emptoyees Under Lhe scheme, the Company is required o
contribule a specified percentage of lhe payroll costs lo fund the benefils The contribulions as specried ara paid lo the Employea State Insurance Corporation {‘'ESIC') set under the ESI
Act 1348 The Company is generally liable for annual contributions if lhe contribution payable lo the scheme for service received before lhe balance sheet dale exceeds Lhe cantribution
already paid, he deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liabiily If the conlribution already paid exceads Lhe contribution dus for sarvices received befars lhe balance sheel
date, then excess is recognised as an assat to lhe extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduclion in future paymenl or a cash refund

The Company has recognized a tolal of Rs 15 27 croras (March 31, 2023: Rs 13 36 crores) as confribution towards all the defined contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss
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Defined Benafits plans

Erstwhile NESCO Employass
i} Gratuity

The Company has = dafmall ent y plan. The grazuty plar = ghimafly governed by thi Cdisha Gl Set rsos) Aules 1 who a3 & nuals satuica for
a period of five yeal : ars-sbgsle for grafuty. The level of ¢ orévided feponds an e membs s siary ol = The gratu: n m early lundod
plan. The fund has tnz farm of and is governed by Tr gl s plan assads and e aefiniton

of lhe Invaslment strategy in accordance with Lhe regulalions The funds are deployed in recognized insurer managed funds in India

i) Panzinn

The Zamparty has a defined benefit pension plan: The pension plan is primarily governed by the Odisha Civil Services {Pension) Rules 1992 Employees who had joined NESCO on or
before 31sl Decemnber 2004 are eligibte for pansion The level of benefils provided depends on he member’s lenglh of service and salary at lhe reliremenl date The pension plan s
parlly funded plan The fund has the form of a rusl and is governed by Truslees appoinled by lhe Company The Ttusleas are responsible for the administration of he plan assels and
for (he definition of the Investment stralegy In accordance wilh (he regulations The funds are deployed in recognized insurer managed funds in India

The lerms of the vesling order as modtied by the Carve Oul order provide thal for entire liabilities loward pension graluily and leave encashment of amployees retried bafore the
acquisttion dals and acquisiion dale liabilities of continuing employees on the acquisition date. the Company's responsibilily 15 limiled anfy to remitting fixed amounl requesled by the
respeclive Trusts and the same will be aillowed (o be recovered from consumers for disbursal lo lhe beneliciares covered under Lhe Trusls Based on specific clarilications provided in lhe
carve oul and he vesling order lhe Company has recognized amounl payable to lhe Trusts for lhe currenl year for onward payment of the sawd habilibes in the slalement of profil and
loss as lhey fall due

Posl-acquisition dale liabililies of employees who were in service employees on lhe acquisition dale are accounled for eilher as defined benelit plan or other long lerm employee benefit
basis nature of lhe benefil

Refer note 18 & for furlher detalls

Othar than Erstwhile NESCO Employees (Unfunded)

i) Gratuity

The Company operales a graluity plan covering qualifying employee The benefit payable is calculaled as per the Payment of Graluity Act 1972 The banefit vests upon completion of
five years of conlinuous service and once vesled il is payable l employees on retirement or on lerminalion of employment The graluily benefits payable 1o lhe employees are based on
the employee's service and last drawn salary al the time of leaving The employees do not conlribute towards lhis plan and lhe full cost of providing these benefils are mel by the
Company In casa of death while In service the graluily is payable irrespective of vesting

i) Pension

The Company has a definad benefil pension plan granting a pre-delermined sum as pension after compleling vesting period

iiil Post Employment Medical Benefit
The Company provides certain posl-employment heallh care benefits to superannualed employees al some of ils locations In terms of lhe plan, lhe retired employees can avall frea
medical check-up and medicines at companies' facilities The bensfil is treated as defined benefil plan

iv) Ex-Gratia Death Benefits
The Company has a defined bensfil plan granling ex-gralia payment in case of dealh during service The benefit consists of a pre-determined lump sum amounl along with a sum
delermined based on lasl drawn basic salary per month and the length of service

v) Retirement Gift

The Company has a defined benefit plan granting a pre-dstermined sum as reti gifton ion of an
As at As at
Provision for Employea Benafits March 31, 2024 31st March 2023
Tin crores ®in crores
Non-Current
Gratuity (Refer Nole 18 6c) 4231 36 00
Pension Fund {Refer Note 18 6¢) 14508 nm
Leave Encashment (Refer Nole 18 6¢c) 3441 2097
Rehabiitation {(Refer Note 18 6¢) 112 200
Other Defined Benefit Plans (Refer Nole 18.6¢) 3299 2740
Total Non-current provisions 25591 158.14
Current
Gratuity (Refer Note 18 &c) o021 019
Leave Encashmenl {(Refer Note 18 6¢) 121 124
Olher Defined Benefil Plans (Refer Note 18 6¢) 3.84 3.47
526 4.90

Other provisions
Provisions for claims & i 1164 1090

11.64 10.90
Total current provisions 1680 15.80
P isition liabillties of smploy transfarred from arstwhile NESCO
The Company has acquired the eleclricity dislribution business of NESCO with sffect from Aprd 01, 2021 As a part of Business transfer, all the employees of lhe undertaking were
lransferred to the Company effective Apri 01. 2021, on a continuily of service conditions. Previously relired as well as inui of NESCO Ir 10 the

Company are entitled to pension and/or gratuily plan which are managed by saparate trusts who are responsible for the disbursement of pension end graluity to the beneficiaries
Liabilities of these trusLs determined on an acluarial basis exceed assets available with them Based on terms of lhe Vesling Order as modified by the Carve Oul Order, thesa liabililies are
treated in two parts

Liabilities for past and isition date

p of axisting employ

The Vesting Order as modified by the Carve Qul order slates thet for entire liabililies toward pansion, graluity and leave encashment of past employees and acquisition date liabiitias of
existing the Company's ibility is limiled only to remitting fixed amount 2siad by the ive Trusls and by it from consumers as a parl of AR lor
disbursal to the bensficiaries covered under lhe Trusts Given below are delails of Trusls' tolal accrued liabilities in respecl of hesa of ligations not ransferred lo the Company al this
slage

As al March 31, 2024 ¥ incrores
Parleulars Pension Cratuity Lasve Total

Total liabliity of ail employess 1,190.25 52.90 101.78 134893

Total liabilities in respoct of obligation not transferred

to the company

Total liabililies of pasl employees 864 65 E . 864 65

Asguaiion date Boities of sxating 180 52 1230 7156 27137

Total 104547 19,30 T155 1,138.02 |

As at March 31, 2023 B lncrares
Particulars Ponsign Gratuity Leave Total

Total fability ol all smployeas 1,138.65 51.42 63.34 1.283.41

Total linblities in respoect of abligation not transferrad

o tha company

Total liabilities of past amployees 87814 . = B78.14

Acausitian dale labifies of ssisting ameio 18874 2246 7544 28664

atal 1,066 B 2248 7544 1.164.70

As per lhe Vesting and the Carve Qut Order, below amounls paid / payable is given below for lhe current year towards the liabilies in respact of obligalion nol ransferred to
Company and have been recognised as expense in the statement of profit and toss and towards liabilities in respact of obligation transfarred lo Company & have been recognised In

liabdily:
Mareh 31, 2024 Ein crotes
Particulars Pansion Sratulty Lanve Total

Amounl pasd/payass owards Hiabd ties in reapact of 10979 408 386 1773
abligution nat ransfarred lo the Company

Amount paidipayatie lowards fiabities in respact of 056 316 098 4.70

ligad (o the Company
Total 11035 724 4.84 122,43
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Margh 31, 2023 ¥ in crores
Partigulars Pansion Gratiilty Lanve Taotal
Amounl paid/payable lowards liabilities in respect of 6 84 = - 96 84
abligalion not lransferred lo the Comoany
Amount paid/payable lowards liabilities in respect of 588 883 365 2456
abiigation transferrad lo lhe Company
{ Total 103.72 B.B3 A% 121.40
Post- isition date liabilities of axisting

The Company has assessed lhal posl transfer of business. (hese plans as defined benefit plans and has accordingly racognized incremenlat liabilily in respecl of existing employees.
on Ihe acquisition dale in the financial slalements Given below are necessary disclosures in respect of these liabiilies along wilh other defined benefit plans of (he Company

Risk associated with lhe plan provistans are acluarial risk These risk are inlerest rale risk demographic risk and salary escalalion risk

Inleresl risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will Increase the plan liability however this will be partially offset by an increase n the return on the plan s debtinvesiments

Longevity risk
The present value of tha defined benefit plan liability is calculaled by referenca lo the best eslimate of the mortality of plan participanls both during and after thei smployment An
increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan s liability

salary Exgolalos ik
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to lhe future salaries of plan participanls. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will
increase the plan s hability.

The following lables set oul lhe funded slatus of gratuity plan and amounl recognized in lhe Company's financial slalemants as at March 31 2024 The valuation
has been carried oul using the * Projecl Unit Credit Method ~ as per Ind AS 19 Employee Benefils* to delermine the presenl value of defined benefil cbligations
and ralaied surrant setuice ol

a. Prasent Vahia of obligoli Ein crores
Othar Defined Benefit )
Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded) {Funded and Gratuity (Funded) | Pansion {(Funded)
L
Prasent Valug of obligations az at Apnil 01, 2022 as por
a lal ion (i i igation not 6.78 125,08 81.04 286.59
to the company) (Refer Note 18 3)
o Intarazt Cost 0 47| 85§ 536 1994
© [Currani Service Cosl 084 213 386 1661
d |Past Sarvice Cost - 001 2 .
& [Acy (Credit)/Cosl 048 039 . -
f | Aciuatial loss / (gain)-Demographic . - - .
o |Actuanai loss / (gain)-Financial (0-13)] (297) (196) (960)
f [A=twaral loss / (gain)-Experience (0 85 627 560 (076)
Sanafits Paid (0351 (852) (1110} (11.36)
i diat I of {gains L ther long term
=mployes banefit plans 3 5 : 5
Prosant Value of sbilgations as st March 31, 2023 as
k |par i i o imati nat 7.24 13097 82.80 301.43
1 to thiy (Rofar Noto 18,3}
i |Intzrest Coat 051 ERL 569 2150
m|Culrent Service Coal 151 1090 361 1247
n |Past Sarvme Sost - . - -
o | Aegusilion (CrediiiCost (0.39) (017) . 002
b [ Achenrial less / (ganOamagraphe - 0.36 (1.35) 598
@ [Molusnal isss ! gaink-Financial 026 504 315 16 49
+ |Aclizanal los | (gan)Experiance 044 214 068 2060
= [Bansfils Paid (0.64) {570) (958) (1394)
N tioa of | gane). ang k=rm
ampicyes banefil plan: B : . .
Prasont valus of abligation at the and of the March 31,
w2024 (Including ebligation nat transfarred o the 8.92 146.71 85.01 364.55
| |company |Refer heto 18.3)

)

[ ]
{ Bhaﬁiﬁesw | w
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b. Fair valus of plan assets

Pincrores
Gratuity (Unfundad) | Other Defined Benefit | Gratuity (Funded) | Pension (Funded)
Particulars {Funded and
i Fair valug of plan assat as ot Apil 1, 2022 (including g 3tz .53
‘| atan assety pot transfarmd to the Company|
8 |Asguinton (Srean)/Cost -] . - =
] mbod relus i o sl an 35880 - 022 214 282
4 [Emipleper santribulan B 035 883 256
8 (Bansfis Paid E (058) {1110) (704)
! |Ecess ol actual sler extmalad relim E (042) 031 065
|9 |Cinars - - - -
h Fair valua of plan asset as at March 31, 2023 (including 275 31.36] 4091
plan assets not transferrad to the Company)
i |Acquaton (Crasd - - 002
| |Egtimated 1eturn on plan assal . 019 221 280
k bloyer cominkulan . 030 728 176
| |Banafils Faiz - {0 50)| (958 (679)
M | Excess ol atium ovier 2stimatsd retufm . 015 087 028
n AL - - i
Fair value of plan assst as at March 31, 2024 {including
B8
@n assats not tranelarred to the Company) C 3242 3895
c. Amount to ba recognized in the balance sheet
£ in crofes
As at March 39, 2024
N Ctivar Definud Banafit
Part
articutars Gratuity (Unfunded) (Funded and Gratuity (Funded) | Pension (Funded)
L
1 Prasant Value ol abligations as al the snd ol he yoor o3 psr
Actianal Vauatian (ncluding shigation not ranaferrsd o Ine 892 146 71 8501 364 55
companyl
2 Far yawe of Assaly ot ne end of the year (ncludmg
poéntion nol tansfarsd o the compary) 458 3212 38.95
3 et liabilty 882 143 82 52 90 325 60
4 Liabilty ol feahisferad io Lha Sompany at per vesting order . 70 20| 19 30] 180 52
T Mal Linteldy iecognaad in palanca sham 8.92 73.63) 33.60 145.08|
6 Net Currenl Linblity recogrased (0 malsncs shasl 021 505 - i
7 Nl Mo Carrant Lisbilty recogrizad in balancs ahes| a71 68 57 33.60 145 n_gj
E in crores
A2 st March 34, 2023
. Othoer Delined Bonefit
Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded) (Fundad and Gratuity (Fundad) | Pension (Fundad)
Unfundad)
1 Prasent Value of obligations as at the ena of lhe year as par
Acluarial Valuation (including obligation not transferred to the 724 13097 8280 301 43|
company)
2 Fair value of Assals at the end of the year {including
obligation not ransferred to the company) 275 33,8 4091
3 Net liabilily 724 12822 5142 26052
4 Liability nol lransferred lo Lhe Company as per vesling order . 7310 2246 188 74
5 Net Liabilily recognized in balence shest 7.24 5512 28.96: 71.77]
6 Net Currenl Liability recognized in balance sheel 019 471 - -]
7 Nsl Non Curant Liabiity rosognized in baidnce sneet 7.04 52,41 2806 177
d ised in the of Profit & Loss
¥ in srores
For the Year Endad March 31, 2024
: Othar Definad Benefit
rticul
Particulars Gratuity (Unfundad) {Fundod and Gratuity (Funded) | Pension (Fundad)
Unfundad)
1 Current Service Cost 151 991 361 1247
2 Pasl Service Cosl - = = .
3 Inlerest Cost 051 318 569 21.50
4 Expecled return on Plan Assels = (019) (221) (280)
5 Immediate Recognition of (Gains)/ Losses - Olher Long - 755 s =
Term Benelils
6 Nel Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in the year - - - -
7 Olhers .
8 Olhers (payment lo trust) - - 4.08 10979
9 Expenses recognized in statement of Profit & Loss 2.01 20.45| 1118 140.95
Fincrofes
For the Year Endod March 31, 2023
. Gthar Defined Benafit
Particulers . o .
Gratuity (Unfundad) (Funded and Gratuity (Funded) | Pension (Funded)
Untundad)
1. Cufrent Servics coats 0.84 213 38 1661
2 Past Service cosls = oot . =
7 Interest cosls 047 858 536 1994
4 Expected return on Plan Assats = 22y 1294) (282)
& Immediale Recognilion of (Gains)/ Losses - Olher Long 375
Term Benefils
& Nat Acluarial {Gain)/Loss recognized in the year - - - >
-2 - - .
A Others {payment to trust) - >, - 96.84
3 Expennes ‘ecoanized i slatamanl ol Proll & Loss 1.3 1435 T.08| 130.58
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a

f

Amount in other incoma { aments)
¥ in crofes
For the Year Ended March 31, 2024
. . Other Definad Banefit
Particulars Gratuity .
{Unfunded) (Tundad and Gratuity (Funded) | Pension (Funded)
Actuarial {gains)losses arnsing trom;
- changes in demographic assumplions =2 . - 598
- changes in financial assumplions 026 0086 180 16.49
- expariance adjustments 044 (022) 068 2062
Relurn on plan assets (grealer\less than discount rale = . (087} 027)
Total 0,70 {0.16] 1,61 42.82
¥ in crores
Far the Yoar Endad March 31, 2023
" " Cthar Dafinod Banafit
Particulars Gratuity . .
{Unfunded) (Tundad and Gratuity {Funded) | Pension (Funded)
Acluarial (gains)losses ansing trom.
- changes in demographic assumptions - - . =
- changes in financial assumptions 013) (0o1) 1196} (960)
- experience adjustmenls (085) (002) 560 (0.76)
Relurn an plan assals (greater)/less than discount rale = - 1031} {065]
Total 3} [D.93) 331 111.00;
Principal assumptions
As at Asat
N March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
|Particulars Gratuity Gratuity
ratui . uil .
{Unfunded) Gratuity {funded) {Unfunded) Gratuity {funded)
1 Discounl rale 700% 700% 7 10% 710%
2 Salary escalation 700% 6 00% 7 00% 7 00%

3 Mortality rale

Indian Assured Lives
Mortalty (2006-08) Ut

Indian Assured Lves
Mortality (2012-14) Ul

Indian Assured Lives
Mortalty (2006-08) Uit

Indian Assured Lives
Mortalty (2008-08) Ull

Category wisa plan assats

As at Asat Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Gratuity (Fundod) Pansion {Fundad)] Sratulty [Funded] | Pansion [Funded] |
Cash & Cash Equivalents 7% 14%) 19% 17%
Stale Government Securities 52% 47% 50% 35%
Government of Indiz Ass i s - -
Corporale Bonds 3N% 39%. 3% 48%
Dlher = - = =
Tota 100% 100% 109% 100%|

Sensitivity analysis

Significant acluarial assumptions for lhe determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity analyses
below have been determined based an reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporling peried, whie holding

all other assumptions constant

€ in crores
Far the Yaar Entdac i 31,2024

1 f (d i ined t liabilif i

Increase/ (decreass) in defined banefit liability Gratuity {Unfundad) G:hnrﬁeﬁnsd Benafit Gratuty (Fundad) | Pansion (Funded)

o v 1o for 0 555 Incraase | -

L:::l[:': ::I,sgszg‘{‘eacnlu.lun rotn for 0 5% incrasass in dalined 045 879 277 1321
lmpael oh salaty esoafaban fote for 25 decreaza in

defined panolit :h‘:'gmnn ) (042) (816) 82 112.98)
1 t an discount rais for (5% i 56 in dufr ol

;::1';:]::‘1 seount rats for 0.5% noresss in dofood banalil (042) 835) 617 (2682)
mpat T o o 055 il i

on;:?a:‘li:‘\ atscaunt rabe for 0.5% decrnase in defived bansfiy 046 908 563 2014

¥ in crores
For the Yenr Endad March 31, 2625

I di i Bt liabili Fined It

Increase/ {decreasa) in dafined benaht liability Gratuity (Unfunded) Othur‘;la ined Banaf Gratuity (Funded) | Pension (Fundad)
Impact on salary escalation rale for 0.5% increase in defined

benefit obligalion =4 758 350 25
Impact on selary escalalion rate for 05% decrease in

defined berar abigation ©032) 703 (342) (1053
:Eﬁ:::i:: discount rate for 0.5% increase in defined benefil (©32) 7on @“s1) (2212)
xlp:fll:: discount rate for 0.5% decreass in defined benefil 034 761 502 2488

The sensitivity enalysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligalion as a resull of

changes in key
all other assumptions constant

tions occuring at the end of reporting pariod The sensitivity are based on a changs in a significant assumption, keaping

The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in lhe defined benefit obligation as i is unlikely thal changes in assumptions would

accur in isolalion from one another

The

to the defined benefit plan in futurs years:*

Ein crares

For the Yaar Endad March

Expectad Futurs cashflows Gratuity (Unfunded) 0'“'53:&:;:“"""‘ Gratuity (Funded) | Pension (Funded)
Year-1 0z 75 37 1761
Year-2 062 806 368 1988
Yoar-3 112 839 237 1562
Year-4 118 803 319 1332
Year-5 121 920 416 1388
lﬁrﬁ-w 783 5110 2247 66.68
T incrores

For the Yaar Ended March 31, 2023

Expoctad Future cashflows Gratuity (Unfunded) | O1e" Befinad Benafit | o\ i) (Fundad) | Pension (Funded)
VaaT 0¥ 35 75 R
Year-2 0.23] 856 557 1540
Vaard 062 782 i 1112
Vesrd 1.08 825 429 30
YearS 1,50, 767 AT5 @35
¥aar 6-10 G653 4348 2628 2 E]

“including payment for liabililies not transferred lo lhe Company {refer note 18 4)
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As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥ in crores Zin crores
NOTE 19 Capital grant and consumer contribution towards Capital Assets
Non Current (At cost less amortisation)
Consumer Contribution towards cost of capital assets 1.266.67 1,063.51
Deferred Government Grants towards cosl of capital assets 107.50 16.25
Total Capital Grant and Consumer Contribution towards Capital Assets 1,374.17 1.079.76
19.01 Movement in consumer contribution towards cost of capital assets
Opening balance 1,063.51 944 .40
Add: Additions during the year 279.70 183.06
Less: Released to lhe statement of profit and loss (Refer note 26) (76.54) (63.95)
Closing Balance 1,266.67 1,063.51
Note: Consumer contribution towards capital cost is amortized to the Statement of Profit and Loss to match with depreciation charged on assets created out of
such contribution
19.02 Movement in Deferred Government Grants towards cost of capital assets
Opening balance 16.25 9.56
Add: Additions during the year 106.23 17.21
Less: Released to the statement of profit and loss (Refer note 26) (14 98) (10.52)
Closing Balance 107.50 16.25
Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of Property, Plant & Equipment. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
attached to these grants.
As at As at
NOTE 20 Other non current liabilities (At amortised cost) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Z in crores Zin crores
Government subsidies towards cost of capital asset 588.61 47159
Consumers' deposits for works under progress 120.31 76.10
Deposit from suppliers/vendors 27.21 3229
736.13 579.98
NOTE 21 Financial Liabilities
A. Non Current Financial Liabilities As at As at
Long Term Borrowings March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥ in crores ¥ in crores
Secured - at amortised cost
Term Loan from banks
(i) Union Bank of India (UBI) 43464 226.09
(i) Indian Bank 72.96 -
Total Long Term Borrowings 507.60 226.09

The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable. The Company has utilised the loan for the sanctioned purpose.
Instalments for the term loan from UBI are payable on quarterly basis and repayment has started from July 2023

Instaiments for the term loan-2 from UBI are payabie on quarterly basis and repayment will start from June 2024

Instalments for the term loan from Indian Bank are payable on quarterly basis and repayment will start from December 2024.

The rate of interest for term loan from UBI is at 6 months MCLR plus spread of 0% per annum with annual reset i.e. presently at 8.45% (March 31, 2023: 7.05%).

The rate of interest for term loan-2 from UBI is at 6 months MCLR per annum + 0% with bi-annual reset, i.e. presently at 8.80% (March 31, 2023: 8.45%).

The rate of interest for term loan from Indian Bank is at 3 months MCLR per annum + 0% with quarterly reset i.e. presently at 8.45% (March 31, 2023: NA)

Term Loans from Union Bank of India is repayable over 56 equal quarterly instalments.

Term Loans from Indian Bank is repayable over 32 equal quarterly instalments.

Term loans from UBI and Indian Bank are secured against first pari passu charge on all the entire movable and immovable PPE of the Company, both present and
future; excluding assets transferred to the Company from NESCO as per lerms of the vesting order.2nd pari passu charge on entire current assets, both present
and future excluding restricted assets as per vesting order

The Company has satisfied all the debt covenants prescribed in the terms of bank loans.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
B. Current financial liabilities

(At amortized cost) As at As at
(a) Short term borrowings March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Zin crores Zin crores

Secured credit facilities from banks
Overdraft
(i) State Bank of India 18.51 18.64
(ii) Federal Bank of India 74.78 74.52
(iii) Axis Bank # 0.00 -
(iv) Union Bank of India = 10077
Current maturities of long term loan 3917 1138
Total short-term borrowings 132.46 205.31

#0.00 represents amount below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company

(b) Secured credit facilities

The Company has availed secured credit facilities of € 500 crores (March 31, 2023: 2 500 crores) from State Bank of India which includes fund based limit of ¥ 250 crores
(March 31, 2023: 250 crores) at an interest rate for applicable 6 Month MCLR plus 25 bps reset at half yearly intervals (March 31, 2023: applicable 6 Month MCLR plus
25 bps reset at half yearly intervals) and Non-fund based limit of ¥ 250 crores (March 31, 2023: Z 250 crores) at a commission of 0.35% per annum (March 31, 2023: at a
commission of 0.35% per annum).

The Company has availed secured credit facilities of 2 300 crores (March 31, 2023: € 300 crores) from Axis Bank which includes fund based limit of ¥ 150 crores (March
31, 2023: Z 150 crores) at an interest rale for applicable 1 Month MCLR reset at monthly interval (March 31, 2023: at an interest rate for applicable 1 Month MCLR reset at
monthly interval) and Non-fund based limit of Z 150 crores (March 31, 2023: ¥ 150 crores) at a at a commission of 0.35% per annum (March 31, 2023: at a commission of
0.35% per annum).

These facilities are secured against first pari passu charge on all the current assets (other than restricted as per vesting order, including consumer security deposils and
Government deposits received in the form of grant, subsidy, relief fund etc) both present and future with other lenders of the Company under Multiple Banking Arrangement
(MBA). Collateral security- Second pari passu charge on entire movable PPE of the Company, excluding assets transferred to the Company from NESCO as per terms of
the vesling order, with other lenders of the Company under Multiple Banking Arrangements (MBA).

The Company has availed secured overdraft limit of ¥ 93.29 crores { ¥ 74.78 crores from Federal bank, ¥ 18,51 crores from State bank of India and  Nil from Union Bank
of India) (March 31, 2023: 2 193.93 crores (Z 74.52 crores from Federal Bank ,Z 18.64 crores from State bank of India and ¥ 100.77 crores from Union Bank of India}) at an
interest rate of 8.20 % p.a., 7.90 % p.a. and 8.24 % p.a respectively (March 31, 2023: at an interest rate of 7.96% p.a, 6.12% p.a and 8.24% p.a respectively)) - These
facilities are secured against fixed deposits of ¥ 273.65 crores (March 31, 2023:% 392.88 crores)

(c) Current borrowings secured against current assets

The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the books of account. The Company has not used any of the
borrowings from banks apart for the purpose for which it was taken

NOTE 22 Trade payables As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥ in crores ¥ in crores
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note 22.2 for details of 55.03 15.14
dues to micro and small enterprises)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 536.61 587.64
Total trade payables 591.64 602.78

221 Trade Payables includes  362.71 crores outstanding dues of related parties as at March 31, 2024. (March 31, 2023: Z 351.04 crores) (refer note 38)

222 Post acquisition, the Company has initiated the process of identifying the micro and small enterprises. Micro and small enterprises under lhe Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) have been determined based on the information available with the Company and the required disclosures
are given below:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥in crores Zin crores

(a)  Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 55.03 15.14
(b) Interest due on above = =
()  The amounl of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along wilh

the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

during each accounting year.
(d)  The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making = =

payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)

but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(e)  The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid = E:
()  The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding years, : -

until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small

enterprise

55.03 15.14

J 2
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223

Trade Payables Ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment #
Particulars ?T;f:e
Less than 1 year* 1-2 Year More than 2
years
(i} Undisputed dues
(a) Totz?l outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 50.06 h 50.06
enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises Dl 1.98 13.04 536.61
iij Disputed dues
(a) To!z_-ﬂ outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 401 0.96 497
enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro ~ =
enterprises and small enterprises E
Total 571.65 5.99 14.00 591.64
As at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of
Particulars payment # Total
More than 2 ¥ crore
Less than 1 Year* 1-2 Year
years
1) Undisputed duss
(a) Tolgl outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 1418 | 1418
enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 574,50 13.04 i 58764
(i) Disputed dues
(a) Tolgl outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small ; 0.96 ) 096
enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other lhan micro - . _
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 588.78 14.00 - 602.78
# Where due date of payment is not available date of transaction has been considered
*includes amount not due as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
NOTE 23 Other financial liabilities - current As at As at
(At amortised cost) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥ in crores ¥in crores
Payable to employees 43.76 36.45
Security deposit from consumers 883.47 795.82
Capital creditors 260.52 14415
Interest accrued but not due on security deposits from electricity consumers 48.38 4254
Payable to residuary company 18.42 78.97
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.11 -
Interest accrued on government grant funds 10,20 29.46
Tariff balancing reserve 328 -
Consumer contribution for work under progress 105.72 105.72
Deposit from suppliers/vendors 4.40 4.40
1,378.96 1,237.51

Note: The security deposits from electricity consumers carry interest at 6.75% p.a (March 31, 2023: 6.75% p.a.) and is adjusted against power bill of the respeclive
customers as per tariff regulations. The amount is refundable on sumrender of eleclricily connection by the consumer.

NOTE 24 Other current liabilities

(a)
(o)

Statutory liabilties
Advance from consumers

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fin crores Tin crores
71.67 77.89
48.75 43.50
120.42 121.39
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NOTE 25 Regulatory Deferral Account

Accounting Policy

(ii)

(i)

The Company determines revenue gaps (i surplus/shortfall in actual returns over returns entitled) in respect of its regulated operations in accordance with the provisions of
Ind AS 114 - 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts’ read with the Guidance Note on Rate Regulated Activities issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) and
based on the principles laid down under the relevant Tariff Regulations/Tariff Orders notified by the Electricity Regulator and the actual or expected actions of the regulator
under the applicable regulatory framework. Appropriate adjustments in respect of such revenue gaps are made in the regulatory deferral account of the respeclive year for the
amounts which are reasonably determinable and no significant uncertainty exisls in such determination

These adjustments/accruals representing revenue gaps are carried forward as Regulatory deferral accounts debit/credil balances (Regulatory Assets/Regulatory Liabilities)
as the case may be in the financial statements, which would be recovered/refunded through future billing based on future tariff determination by the regulator in accordance
with the electricity regulations

The Company presents separate line items in the balance sheet for:
i. the total of all regulatory deferral account debit balances and related deferred tax balances; and
ii. the total of all regulatory deferral account credit balances and related deferred tax balances.

A separate line item is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the net movement in regulatory deferral account.

Rate Regulated Activities

As per the Ind AS-114 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts', the business of electricity dislribution is 2 Rate Regulated activity wherein OERC, the regulator determines Tariff to be
charged from consumers based on prevailing regulations in place.

The Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and Condilions for Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations,2014, is applicable. These
regulations, together with the vesting order, require OERC to determine tariff in @ manner wherein the Company can recover its fixed and variable costs including assured rate
of return on approved equity base, from its consumers. The Company determines the Revenue, Regulatory Assets and Liabilities as per the terms and condilions specified in
these Regulations and Vesting Order

As per lhe vesting order, the AT&C loss trajectory which can be passed on to customers is fixed for the first ten years. Any gain/ loss arising due to lower/ higher AT&C losses
vis-a-vis fixed trajectory belongs to the Company and is not passed on to the customer. The Company determines the amount of such gain/ loss based on basis power
purchase cost only and treats all other expenses including operation and maintenance expenses, employee cost, finance cost and tax expense as pass through to the
consumers as per prevailing regulations and tariff orders while determining 'Regulatory Deferral Account Balance.

In terms of the applicable regulations, the Company submits its Annual Revenue Requirements (ARR) before beginning of the year for approval of the OERC. After close of
financial statements for a year, the actual income and expense incurred by the Company are reviewed and approved by the OERC in the form of True-up Order.

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fin crores ¥ in crores
Regul y Deferral A t - Assets/(Liabilities)
Regulatory Assets 82.16 (8.36)
Regulatory Assetsi(liabilities) 82.16 (8.36)
Movement of Regulatory Assets/Liabilities of distribution business as per Rate Regulated Activities is as follows:
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥ in crores Fin crores
Regulatory Income/(Expenses) during the year
(i) Power Purchase Cost (Normalive) net-off rebate 2,531.62 2,312.31
(i) Other expenses as per the terms of Tariff Regulations including Retum on Equity 1,311.51 1,043.57
(i) Available revenue net of cash discount including non tariff income etc * (3,797.57) (3.378.12)
Net movement in regulatory deferral balances (i+ii+iii) (A) 45.56 (22.24)
Regulatory (expenses)/income recognised in OCI (B) 44.96 (8.70)
Opening regulatory assets (C) (8.36) 22,58
Closing reg y (liabilities)/assets (A+B+C) 82.16 (8.36)

“Based on the true up order upto March 31, 2023, Non-tariff income has been allowed excluding meter rent. Accordingly, the Company has retained meter rent (net of
depreciation, finance cost and other installation costs) excluding the meters installed under various Government schemes such as I\PDS etc. instead of Non- tariff income.

The aggregate of such meter rent {net of depreciation, finance cost and other installation costs) recognised during the year is ¥ 30.46 crores (including ¥ 17.47 crores
pertaining to earlier years).
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True-up order

The Company determines revenue gaps (i e surplus/ shortfall in actual returns over returns entitled) in respect of its regulated operations in accordance wilh the provisions of
Ind AS 114 - 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts' read wilh the Guidance Note on Rate Regulated Activities issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanls of India (ICAI) and
based on the principles laid down under the relevant Tariff Regulations/Tariff Orders notified by the OERC and the actual or expected actions of the regulator under the
applicable regulatory framework

The OERC (Terms and Conditions for Determinalion of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations, 2022, regulations require the OERC to determine tariff in a
manner that the Company, subject to certain specific gains and losses allowed to be retained under the Vesting Order, can recover its fixed and variable costs including
assured rale of return on approved equity base, from its consumers. The Company determines the Revenue, Regulatory Assets and Liabilities as per the terms and conditions
specified in these Regulations. In terms of the regulations, the Company submits its Annual Revenue Requirements (ARR) before beginning of the year for approval of the
OERC. After close of financial statements for a year, the actual income and expense incurred by the Company are reviewed and approved by the OERC in the form of True-
up Order,

During the current year, the Company has filed true up petition for FY 2022-23 along with ARR petition for FY 24-25 as per the regulations. After going through due process of
tariff finalisation, the OERC has issued true up order up to FY 2022-23 and ARR for FY 2024-25. In the true up order, the OERC has found that the licensees have incurred
actual expenses in variance to approved amount by the OERC pertaining FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23

The OERC has trued up revenue gap / surplus upto March 31, 2023, resulting in a lower revenue entitlement of ¥ 146 82 crores vis-a-vis the amount arrived at using actual
expenses incurred by the Company. The Management has submitted a petition with OERC for review of the above lower revenue entitlement and also seeking a clarification
from them that true up of FY 2022-23 carried out is only provisional and has not been finalised . The management believes that the Company will be able to justify additional
expense to the OERC and claim in the next ARR filings

Also, during the current year, the Company has incurred additional expenses under the following heads as compared to amount approved by the OERC for the financial year
2023-24.
Operation and Maintenance expenses - ¥ 29.00 crores

The Company continues to treat above additional expenditures as pass through to the consumer, The management believes that there will not be any adverse financial
implications.
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NOTE 26 Revenue recognition

Accounting policy

Revenue from wilh isT ised when control of the goods or services are lransferred 1o the customer al an amount {hat reflects the consideration
to which the Company expects 1o be entilted in exchange far those goods or services

Description of performance obligalions are as follows:

261

264

2641

265

Sale of Power - Distribution

Revenue from the supply of power s recognised nel of any cash rebates over lime for each unit of electricily delivered al lhe pre<delermined rale as per
the tariff order

Revenue from power supply is accounted for on lhe basis of billings to consumers and includes unbilled revenue accrued uplo the end of the reporling
year

Revenue from power supply is recognised net of the applicable taxes and other amounls which the Company collects from the customer on behalf of the
government/state authorities

The Comparny, 3s per the pravaiont Regulatons (refermed aa Tarif Regalitions™) for nll»tn.m!nu bumn:m is required 1o recover s Annual Revenue

Requiiemeant [ARR) compresing of expenditure on aceaunt af pawer coslE. ap and - iy cost and taxation, as
per {he zad Taril Reguialions and an ansured rolum oo egquity As-per the:said Tarff Segulations, the -.:unnun\.' istarmines lhe ARR and any
excess/shortfall in recovery of ARR during the year is accounted for in "Regulatory Deferral Account Balance”

Revenue in respecl of invoice raised for dishonesl ion of power is i when the cerainly of ils collection is probable | e generally as and
when recovered

Contribution for capital works

Consumer & camirifition towards properiy, plast and equipment which require an obligatian 1o provide alesitinity sonneciivity Lo the consumers 5 ireated as
capilal recaipt and crediled in othe! Kabliilles under the head ‘consumed's deposil for wrrk' until tranaferred 1@ separate account an cammissioning of the
assets. An amaurn] aquivalent lo the depreciation charge for the year onsuch assets 13 approprated from thes acsount 26 income 1o the Statemenl of Prafit
and Loss.

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥ in crores ¥ in crores
Revenue from operations
Gross revenue as per tariff 3,622 82 3,206.73
Less: Cash discount 5023 34.26
R fram with 3 3,572.50 3,172.47
Other operating revenue
tan of s 7654 6395
Amortisalion of government granls in capital nalure 14.98 10.52
Amortisation of governmenl grants in revenue nature 023 1081
Recovery of meter rent 4461 27 60
Over drawal payment recovered 842 9.06
Open access cross subsidy income 2255 34.21
Supervision charges 1616 992
Miscellaneous operaling income 133 1.64
Total other operating ravenue 184.82 167.71
Revenua from opaerations 3,757.41 3,340.18

Disaggregation of revenue

The Company deals in a single lype of product i.e. power which is sold directly to consumers, consideralion in respect of which is based on energy supplied
Thus further disclosure in respect of disaggregalion of revenue is not required

Contract Balances
The following table provides informalion aboul receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with cuslomers

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥ in crores 2in crores
Contract liabilities
Advance from consumers 48.75 43.50
Taolal contract fisbiiities 48.75 43.50
D
Recaivables
Trade raceivablas 328.70 350.40
Unbilled revenue depending only on passage of ime 305.29 20572
Less : Allowances for doubtful debts (151.32) (90.54)
Net receivables 482.67 555.58

“Includes revenue recognised during the year from opening balance of ¥ 20.06 crores and advance received during the year not recognised as revenue of &
25.31 crores

Contract assets

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services lransferred to Lhe customer. Conlract assels are lransferred to receivables
when the righls become uncondilional

Contract Liabilities

A zontroct liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amatmnl tf
considembion is due) from the _ifa pays ion before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a cantract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is eariier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when lhe
Company performs under the contract including advance received from customer i.e., normailly wilhin twelve months from reporting date

are as follows:

Significant changes in lhe contract assets and the contract liabililies balances during the y
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Contract assets

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unbilled ravenue Zin crores 2in crores
Opening balance as at 1 April 29572 22752
Add: Revenue recognised during the year 305 29 29572
Less: Transfer from conlract assels to receivables/adjustments (295.72 227.52)
Closing Balance 305.29 295.72

266 T
The remaining performance obligalion disclosure provides Lhe aggregate amount of the transaction price yel lo be recognised as al the end of the reporting
period and an explanation as lo when lhe Company expects lo recognise these amounts in revenue Applying the practical expedienl as given in Ind AS
115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts as lhe revenue recognised corresponds directly
with the value to the of the entity’s perfc d lo date

Price - Performance O

NOTE 27  Otherincome

Accounting Policy
- Interest income
[mterest inoome from A financs| sssot s recogaised wihen @ ia probable dhat the ecanamie bensfits will low (o the Compary and the smount al fngome can
b mensured raliably, fnterest weme B aceried on 3 Ume basis, by reference to the principal cutstanding and at the affectiviz Inleres! rate applicable,
whieh is the rate thal exactly discounts estimated future cash reseipts through the sxpacted lile af the finnncial asset to lhat asssl's nat canying amaount on
inilial recognilion

- Dolayeid Payment Charges {OPC

DPC is charged =l the rale prescribed by Lhe Tariff

on the balance. R in respect of DPC and interest on DPC leviable as

per the Tariff Reg are r d on aclual r or ncarusd based on an assessmenl of cerfainly of roallsatian supporled by an
from
Incontive on Past Arrears Collection
A per terms of OERC vesting srdear, the Company is eligible for i on past area ions pertaining to peried prior lo March 31,
2021 Income in respect of i ive is ised as of actual re of past arears
Other income Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest income on 2in crores Zin crores
Bank Deposils 84.51 48 48
QOther non - operating income
Delayed paymeni surcharge 1315 1721
Other income™ 1411 858
Incentives on arrears collection 15 60 3821
127.37 112.47
* (includes scrap sale, LD charges etc)
NOTE 28 Cost of power purchased and issi harg
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2 in crores €in crores
Power purchased 2,361.70 2,071975
Transmission charges 168.76 18129
SLDC charges 1.16 1.08
Gross power purchase and transmission charges 2,262.12
Less: Rebate on power purchased and transmission charges (21.90)
Net power purchase and transmission charges 2,240.22
NOTE 29 Employee benefits expense (net) Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

?in crores Zin crores
Salaries, wages and bonus 27349 24411
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 18 2) 1627 13.36
Staff wellare expenses 16.99 1354
Terminal benefit expenses 177.89 13777
Equity settled options granted by parent (refer nole below and note 38) 028 -
Gross employee benefit expenses 483.92 408.77
Less: Employee cost capitalization [18.70) {12.85)
Net employee benefit expenses 467.22 395.92
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Share Based Payments
Accounting policy

The Tata Power Company Limited ("Holding Company”) has granted employee stock options to the eligible employees of the Company
As per the scheme, on fulfilling of the vesting condition the Holding Company will issue its equity shares to the eligible employees of the
Company.

The cost of equily-settied transactions is determined by the fair value of holding company's share at the date when the grant is made
using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the companies best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the statement of profit and loss for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the companies best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest, Non-vesling conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested imespective of whether the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied; provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair value of the unmodified
award, provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional expense, measured as at the date of modification, is
recognised for any modification that increases he total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is
expensed immediately through profit or loss

Equity-settled share option plan
The Tata Power Company Limited — Employee Stock Option Plan 2023

During the year, the shareholders of the Holding Company approved ‘The Tata Power Company Limited — Employee Stock Option Plan
2023' (ESOP 2023 'Plan’). During this year, the Holding Company has granted employee stock options to the eligible employess of the
Holding and its subsidiaries, including employees of the Company at an exercise price of Rs. 249.80 (Rupees Two Hundred Forty Nine
and Eighty Paise) per option exercisable into equivalent equity shares of ¥ 1 each subject to fulfilment of vesting conditions.

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥ in crores Z in crores
Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions 0.28
Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions 0.28 =

Movements during the year

Option exercisable at the beginning of the year <
Granted during the year 2,04,690 -
Forfeited/Expired during the year - -
Exercised during the year = =
Expired during the year - =

Option exercisable at the end of the year 2,04,690 -
Share price for options exercised during the year Not applicable 4
Remaining contractual life 2.58 Years E

The holding company has estimated fair value of options using Black Scholes model. The following assumptions were used for
calculation of fair value of options granted

Year Ended Year Ended
Assumption factor March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Dividend Yield (%) 0.70% -
Risk free interest rate (%) 7.21% E
Expected life of share option (Years) 3-5Years -
Expected volatility (%) 39.81% -
Weighted Average Share price 249.80 -
Weighted Average Fair Value at the measurement date 97.75 -

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of
future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome
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NOTE 30 Finance costs Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Zin crores ¥ in crores
Interest on consumer security deposits at amortised cost 50.46 41 96
Interest on cash credit carried at amortised cost - banks 15.53 14.52
Interest on long term borrowing at amortised cost - banks 32.28 7.86
Other borrowing cost (commitment charges, processing fees etc) 4.26 3.91
102.53 68.25

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs

NOTE 31 Other expenses Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T in crores Fin crores

Repairs and maintenance:

(i) Building 1.32 413
(i) Plant and equipment 238.81 248.17
(i) Vehicles and Office equipment 0.56 047
(iv) Fumiture and Fixtures 0.66 0.71
Rent 245 1.67
Consuitancy fees (refer note 31.1) 7.55 8.85
Legal charges 3.47 3.18
Advertisement and marketing expenses 278 1.89
Tariff balancing reserve 3.28 -
Electricity consumption expenses 6.00 3.53
Telephone expenses 212 1.52
Insurance premium 3.86 2.88
Travelling and conveyance 2.66 4.19
Office expenses 5.20 4.94
Allowance for doubtful debts 60.78 64.98
Outsourced employee expenses 19.43 13.92
Watch and ward expenses 2.10 5.27
Billing and collection expenses 135.23 93.96
Provisions for claims and compensation 1.04 1.59
Directors sitting fees 0.45 0.45
CSR expenditure (refer note: 31.2) 3.87 1.89
Miscellaneous expenses 113 1.96
Loss on retirement of property, plant and equipment 0.70 0.12
Total other expenses 505.45 470.27

311 Pavments to auditors

Consultancy fees include auditor's remuneration as follows: Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

¥ in crores Zin crores
As auditors:
Audit fee (including Goods and Services Tax) 0.51 0.49
Tax audit fee 0.03 0.02
Limited Review 0.24 0.23
In other capacity:
Other services (certification fees) 0.02 0.02
Reimbursement of expenses 0.02 0.04

0.82 0.80
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NOTE 32

322

Details of CSR expenditure

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Z in crores Zin crores
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 329 2.40
Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 3.29 240
Amount spent during the year ended on March 31, 2024 In Cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
i} Construction/acquisition of any asset - = -
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 3.54 0.33 3.87
Amount spent during the year ended on March 31, 2023: In Cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
i} Construction/acauisition of any asset - - -
iiy On purposes other than (i) above 157 0.32 1.89
Details related to spent/unspent obligations:

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Zin crores Zin crores
a. Employability and Employment (Skilling for livelihoods) 0.54 0.73
b. Education (Including Financial and Digital Literacy) 0.98 0.42
¢ Essential Services (Health and Environment) 141 0.55
d. Entrepreneurship 0.93 0.19
Unspent amount in relation to
- On-going project - 0.51
Total 3.87 2.40

Tax expenses
Accounting policy
Tax expenses comprises current tax expense and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates
and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of
uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts
better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financials statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced fo the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity).

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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NOTE 33

Tax expense Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

¥ in crores Zin crores

Current income tax charge 40.31 29.03

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier year 794 (3.41)
Deferred tax

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences for current year 648 9.37

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences in respect of earlier years (7.23) -

Total income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 47.50 34.99

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

" Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
in crores Z in crores

Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 180.46 150.66
Tax at the India's statutory tax rate of 25.17% 45.42 37.92
Computed expected tax expenses
-CSR expenses 0.97 0.47
-Others 0.40 -
Income tax expense 46.79 38.40
Tax expenses in respect of earlier year 0.71 (3.41)
Total income tax expense 47.50 34.99

The Company has made provision for income tax at the rate of 25.17% ( Tax rate 22% Plus Surcharge 10% Plus cess 4% on tax & surcharge )

in accordance with normal provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31,2023.

Deferred tax liability As at As at
Deferred tax liability on account of : March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥ in crores Fin crores
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (77.57) (43.08)
Provision for doubtful debts 38.09 22.79
Post employment employee benefits 19.94 -
Total {19.54) {20.29)
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Z in crores ¥ in crores
lems that will not be rectassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement-gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (44.96) 8.70
Net Movement in regulatory deferral balances 44.96 (8.70)

Total other comprehensive income -

Post-acquisition of business, the Company has decided to treat pension and gratuity benefits payable to erstwhile NESCO employees as defined
benefit plan under Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits". Consequently, the cost and liability of providing such benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method (PUCM). Among other matters, the application of PUCM results in recognition of remeasurement gain/ loss, comprising items
such as actuarial gains and losses and effect of the asset ceiling, in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The amount of remeasurement gain/

loss fluctuates period on period based on changes in actuarial assumptions including discount rate and mortality rate.

To ensure offsetting impact in the OCI and the Balance Sheet, the Company recognises equivalent amount as Regulatory Deferral Account
—Income/ expense in the OCI. The amount of Regulatory Deferral Account — Income/ expense recognised in the OCI in this manner fluctuates in line
with and in contrary to the Remeasurement gain/ loss. Based on the Vesting Order, the Company will be allowed to include and recover this amount

as revenue from customers only when the amount is paid to the trust for onward payment to employees
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Nota 34 Commitments: As at As at
€in crores Zin crores
Estimaled amounl of Conlracls remaining to be executed on capital account and nol provided for 53958 366 53
Total 530.58 366,53

As per lerms of vesling order, cumulalive capital expenditure of ¥ 1 270 crores (FY 2022-26) has been commilled Further commitmanit in fespact 01 ATED \nss=a reduction
and pasl arrears colleclion have also been slated in lhe vesling order

Nota 35 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilily 1s:

(a) a possible abligalion arising from past evenls and whose sxislence will be confirmed only an lhe occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fulure evenls
nat wholly within lhe control of the enlity or

{b) a present obligalion thal arises fram pasl events but is not recognised because:

- ilis nol probable that an outflow of rasources embodying economic banefits will be required lo sallle the obligalion or

- the amaunt of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficienl reliability.

The Company does not recognize a conlingent liability bul discloses lhe same as per the requirements of Ind AS 37

Conlingent Assel

A contingent asssl is a possible assel (hal arises [rom past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by- the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or mora uncerlain
fulure events nol wholly within the conlrol of the entily. The Company does nol recognise lhe conlingent sssel i ils financial sialements since Lhis may resull In the
recognilion of income Lhal may never be realised Where an inflow of ecenomic benefils are probable, the Company disclose a brief dascriplion of lhe nalure of contingenl
assels at the end of 1he reporting period. However,when Lhe realisation of income is virtually certain. (hen the related asset is nol a contingent asset and the Company
recognise such assals

Provisions, contingent liablliies and contingent assels are reviewed al each Balance Sheel date

As at As at
Particulars Mareh 31,2024 March 31, 21
€in crores €in crores
351 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as dabls:
Legal cases filed by consumers, amployses and others under litigation 1008 442
352 Direct lax matters relaled to FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18 pending with CiT Appeals 4473 4473

353 ingvecl lax maliarg
Assaessment order for £Y 2014-15 to 2016-17 {up lo June 30, 2017) was made by Principal Commissioner GST and Central 2534 2534
Excise, Bhubaneswar imposing Service Tax penalty of 2 25 34 crores on NESCO Utility U/s 78()) of Finance Act 1994 afler
dropping the demand of 2 1 26 crores oul of lolal demand 2 26 60 crores Company contesled Lhe same by fiing an appeal lo
CESTAT Kolkala

No provision is considered necessary since the Company expacts favourable decisions as well as past liabililies are pass lhrough in lariff

Before acquisition, NESCO Utility was not identifying and (racking dues payable to MSME vendors saparately. Conseguenlly, it was not tracking whelher timely paymenls are
being made lo such vindars and/ or inlerest penally, f any, paynble for delay in making paymant. Past acquisition the Company has initialed a process and dentifizd MEME
vendors basad on canfirmatlons receivad. In the absence ol ndeguste dala, lhe Company is unatis to determine whelher any interest or penally is payable fat past dolsull.
The management will be able to identify and recognise such obligation, if any, based on claims received

354

355 As per terms of vesling order all litigalions pertaining to NESCO have baen lransferred lo the Company. In case of any unfavourable oulcome the Company wil be able to
recover lhe liability through Aggregate Revenue Requirement

356 Alsorefer nole no 25

Note 36 Earnings per Equity share {EPS)
Accounting pollcy

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of lhe Company by the weighled average number of Equily shares
oulstanding during the year

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing he profit attributable lo equity holders of the Canpany jahter 2diusting far dvetond migiest ard oirer charges o xpansa of
income {net of any attribulable laxes)] by the weighted average number of Equity shares aussianding during [ year plus the weighled average number of Equity shares thal
would be issued on conversion of all the diulive polenlial Equity shares inlo Equity shares.

The Company also presenls Basic EPS in accordance with Ind AS 114, "Reg y Deferral ‘which is by dividing the profit for the year before and after
net movement in regulatory deferral account balance attribulable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares oulslanding during Lhe year

Cilutad eammgs per shara 13 computed by diveting e profit for the year betore and aller net movamesnt in regulatory defarral azonunt alancze atirtulabis L= squity holders.
a3 [t aujusting for dadengd. nisrest and oner charges 1o axporss of ingorte {nel of any allribalabie awesl] relaling 2 lv diubive palantial eguily shates by the weighled
averogs number af equity shares outstanding during tho ynas o3 adgsted to the effects of all diulve potential egulty sharms, e whers reaulls ars enl-dludie,

361 EPS - Continui i i yi .
Particulars Units March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
a) Profit for the year 2 n crores 132 96 i1i5067
b) Net movemenl in regulalory deferral account balance 2 in crores 45 56 2224
¢) Income-tax atiributable lo regulatory delerral account balance 2in crores 1147 560
d) Nel movement in regulatory deferral accounl balanca (nel of tax) {b-c) 2n crores 34 09| 16 64
&) Prolfil for the year from conlinuing operations attributable lo equity shareholders before nel movernent in feduiatary| ¥ in crores 167 0d 132.31
deferral account balance (a+d)
f) Weighted average number of equily shares Nos /crores 3991 2955
g) Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of ¥ 10 each {e/f) ? 4.19 448
h) Face value of equity shares 2 1000 1000
e . N : " N
=62 EPS. Y Units March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023
Particulars
a) Profit for the year from continuing operations afier nel movement in regulatory deferral account balance allribulable 1o 2 crores 132.96 115.67
equily shareholders.
b) Weighted average number of equily shares Nos /crores 3991 2955
¢) Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of ¥ 10 each (a/b) ? 333 39
d) Face value of equity shares k4 10.00, 10.00

There has been no other transactions involving equity shares or polentioal equity shares between lhe reporling date and lhe date of authorisation of these financial
stalements.




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401080R2021PLC035951
Januganj, Balasors, Odisha, India, 756019
Wabsite: www.tpnedl.com; Email: contactus@tpnodl.com

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
ing il i Fair value Financial Risk and ing of fi ial assets and liabilities

Note 37 Financial H

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides addilional information on balance shest items that contain financial instruments

The delails of significant accounting policies, inciuding Lhe criteria for recognition, Lhe basis of measuremant and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised In respecl of each class of financial
asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in the financial stalements

(i) Accounting classifications

The fair values of the financial assets and liabililies are the amounl at which Lhe mslrument could be exchanged in a current transaction belween willing parties, olher than 1n a forced or liquidalion sale

The following melhods and assumplions were used o estimate the fair values:

The carrying amounts of lrade racetvables, cash and cash equivalents. shor term deposits, trade payables, payables for acquisilion of property, plant and equipment, shod lerm loans from banks, financial
\nstilulions and others are considered lo be lhe same as their fair values, due lo Lheir shori-lerm nalure Most financial assets and habililies of the Company as at the balance sheel date are shorl lerm having
fair vaiue equal to amarlised cosl

{it) Falr Value measuraments

T Company uses Lhe following hierarchy for delermining and disclosing Lhe fair value of financial inslruments by valuation technigue

Level 1 Unadjusted quoled prices in aclive markels for identical assats or liabilities

Level 2: [nputs are other than quoled prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assat or liability, sither directly {1 e as pricas) or indireclly (s @ derived from prices)
Lavel 3: Significant unobservable inputs from assats and liability

-Fair Value

The following table summarizes lhe fair value hierarchy for financial assets and financial liabililies thal are either measured at farr value on a recurring basis or are not measured at fair value (but fair value
disclosures are required) and the carrying value of financial instruments by calegories:

As ot March 31, 2024: fin crores
Particulars Carrying Value FVTPL FvTOCI Amortised Cost Level 1 Leval 2 Leval 3
Financinl Assats
{a) Trade receivables 177 38 - . 17738 - [ -
|B] Unbilled revenue 305 29 = . 305 28 E =
(=} Olher financial assets (current and non-
cizrant] 446 34 = - 446 34 - € 40117
{d} Cazn and cash equivalents 376 94 - - 376.94 - E =
(=) Bank balances other than (d) above 1.088.20 - - 1,085 28 - - -
2.385.23 - - 2,573 - - 40197,
= |
640.06 = - 640 06 - 548 77 -
59164 ¥ . 591 64 - %
(o) Cther finanaal hapilibas 1. 378 05 - - |, 378 56 = = -
2,010.06 =+ . 2,610,686 - 546,77
As at March 31, 2023: Tinemrs
Particulars Carrying Value FVTPL FvTOCI Amortised Cost Level 4 Lavel 2 Lovel 3
Finaneial ASsols
{m] Trade receivables 259 86 L - 259 86 = - -
Bt} Unbilled revenue 29572 B = 20572 = -
() Other financial assets {current and non-
cument) 409.24 = = 409 24 = - 38116
[d} Cash and cash equivalenls 248 82 = - 24882 - - =
(&} Bank balances other than (d} above 953.93 - - 953 .93 - - .
218157 - 2 2,107 58 = 3 381,16 |
Financial Liabilities
(@) Borrowings (Currenl and Non Curent) 431.40 - * 43140 = 237 47
\b) Trade payables 602.78 » = 60278 = - E:
{1 Other financial liabilities 1,237 51 - = 1,237.51 - - .
ZITTEE = = 227180 - ITAT -

There have been o transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

(lii) Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital managemenl, capital includes issued equily capital and all other equily reservas atiributable to the equity holders of lhe Company The Company s objeclives for

capilal pi g ing the business as a going concem, crealing value for staksholders and supporting the development of Lhe Company. In particular, the Company seeks to mainiain an
adequate capitalisation that anables it to achieve a satisfactory retum for shareholders and ensure access o exiemal sources of financing, in parl by mainlaining an adequate rating

The Company monilors capital using & gearing ralio, which is nel debt divided by lotal capilal plus nst debt

The Company’s capital structure consists of net debt and tolal equity. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing borrowings, less cash and cash equivalenls as detailed below The position on
reporling date is summarised in the following lable:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 341, 2023
¥ in crores ¥ in crores

Long-tarm pomawings incuding cwment matunties of fong term bomowengs {refer nots 21) 546 77 237 a7
Srangrm bormowings [reier nots 21) 9329 193 93
Inlerest acerusd out not dua on parmewings (refer note 23) 011 -
Total Debt (a} 64017 431,40
L.ess Cash and cash equivalents (b} (refer nole 13) 376.94 248.82
ot debt {{c)=(a-b)} 263.23 182.58
Tatal equity (d) {refer note 16 and nole 17} 886.60 567 74
Totat sgulty snd nat dabl {{ul={z+d)] 1.149.84 77032
Gearing ratio (%) {(A=lc){s)} 22 RE%| 23.70%

1 Debt is defined as long-term borrowings (including current maturities) and short-lerm bormowings and interest accrued on long-term and short-term
ii Equity is defined as aquily share capital and other equity

g
In order to achiave Lhis overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meels financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that
define capital structure requiremenls Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and barrowings There have baen no significant breaches in the financial

covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowings in Lhe current year

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during Lhe years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
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(iv) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, consumers security deposit, rade and olher payables and other financial liabilites The main purpose of these financial liabilities 1s to finance
the Company's operations The Company s principal financial assats include investments, loans, trade and olher recevables, cash and cash equivalanls, other balances with banks , unbilled revenue and other
financial assets that are derived directly from its operations

The senior managemant of the Company oversees thesa risks and are managed i accordance with the Companies policies and risk objectives

{v) Market Risk

Market risk (s the risk that changes 1n markel prices will affect lhe Company's income or valua of it's holding of financial instruments. The objeclive of markel risk managemenl is Lo rria ard conlal markal
risk exposures within while opli lhe return As al the reporting dale, the Company does not have material financial assets or financial habilities expasing it to significant markel
risk comprising foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk

The variable rate of borrowing will not have any impact on profil & loss of lhe Company as interesl cosl 1s pass-through (o consumers through ARR
(vi) Interest rate risk

Inlerest rale risk 1s the risk Lhal the fair value or fulure cash flows of a linancial inslrument will flucluate because of changes 1n market interesl rates The Company s exposure to the risk of changes in markel
Interesl rates relates primarily to the Company s Long tesm debt obligations with floating interest rates

Interest rates on floating rate loans are linked with differant benchmarks (8 g MCLR/T- Bills etc) to distribute the risk wherever possible Furlher, senior management of the Company monitors its interest rate
risk regularly and may take appropriate action if needed to mitigate risk

Any fluctualion In the floating interest rale will be allowed as pass through to the Company as parl of the Annual Revenue Requirement (ARR). Hence, lbe Company is of the view that lhe interest rate
sensitivily on account of interest rale fluctuation will nol have any material impact of ils financial position or financial performance as reflecled in Lhe financial stalemenls

{vii) Credit Risk
Credit risk refers lo Lhe risk thal a counlerparty will defaull on its conlractual obligalions resulling in financial loss to the Company The Company is exposed lo credil risk from its operating activities (primarily
\rade recevables and unbilled revenue) and olher financial instruments.

N As at As at
Farticulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
¥ incrores Pin crores

{a) Trade recevables 17738 259 86
{b) Unbilled ravenue 305 29 29572
{c} Other financial assets {current and non-

current) 446.34 400 24
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 376 94 24882
(e) Bank balances ather than above 1,089 28 953,93
Tatal 2,385.23 2.187,57

In case of trada receivables and unbilled revenue, senior management of the Company monilors overdue amount on regular basis and lake appropriate action, including forfeilure of securily deposit and/ or
disconnection of electricity, (o gel limely dues Refer note 12 for further details of credil risk/ loss allowance on trade receivables. Mosl of the cash and bank balances of the Company are with scheduled
commercial banks where risk of default is low

(viii) Liquidity risk
Lifpeclity risk = the risk tial the Company will encaustsr difficulty in mastng obligations asaociated with financial liabilities thet are settled by delivering cash or anotier finangizl asset. The Company manages

Ty sk By maintiuning AdexuEls resarvas aanking fazilities i resarva pomowing fasiities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matshing the maturity profiles of financial
amets and [labilittes. The Company has acmassta s = mnt varialy of souscesof funding

The following 1able details the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods, ignoring the call and refinancing options available with the Campary, The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include bolh inlerest ani primcipal
cash llows The amounls included below for variable interest rale nstruments for non-derivative liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable interesl rates differ to those estimales of interest rates
determined at the end of the reparting period

?incrores
Parjeulsrs Up to 1 vaar 1to 5 ynars 5+ years. Tul.nl‘
A= at March 31, 2024
|al Tradu payables 59164 - - 59164
|} Short term borrowings 9329 - = 9329
lei Long term bomowings (including (ulure
Intarsst} 8480 32180 450.08 856.78
[y Interest accrued but not due on
borrowings 011 = - 011
(@) Othas financ:al labilites 1.378.08 . - 1,378.98
2.148.80 321,80 450.08 2020.78
Pincrores
Particulars Up to 1 year 1to 5 years B+ yaars Total
As at March 31, 2023
(8) Trade payables 60278 - . 60278
(b) Shor term borrowings 193 93 - - 19393
(c) Long term borrowings (including future
Interest) 3081 13269 22039 383 89
(d) Interest accrued bul not due on
bormowings - B = =
(21 Othar fingnsial labiifies 1,237 51 - - 1,237.51
2.065.03 1312.69 22039 2,418.19

As at the balance sheel dale, the Company has cash and bank balances (including deposits classified under non-current financial assats) of 2 1,853 07 crores (March 31, 2023: ¥ 1,570 03 crores) which can be
used to meel its obligation. In case of requirement, the management is confident of raising further finance as required to meet ils obligations The Company has access to financing facilities as described in

note below The Company expacls to meet ils from ing cash flows and p of maturing financial assets
Tin crores
| E— s ot March 39, 2024
Financing facilities (short term } Fund basad Non-fund basad Total
Secured credil facilities, reviewed annually and payable at call
Amount used and outstanding 9329 449 98 543 27
Amount unused 515.03 = 51503
Total E08.32 448.98 1.058.30
fin crores
As at_March 31, 2023
i .
Finaneing facilities (short term ) Fond basad Non-fund based Toml
credit facilities, reviewed annually and payable al call
Amount used and outstanding 193 93 350 52 544 45
Amount unused 56523 49.48 61471
Total T50.18 A00.00 1,158.18 |
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Note 38 Related party disclosures

Names of related parties and related party relationship-where control exists
A. Holding company
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL)

B. Promoters holding together with its subsidiary more than 20% in holding company
Tata Sons Private Limited (Tata Sons)

C. Company exercising significant influence
GRIDCO Limited

D. Fellow Subsidiaries (with whom the Company has transactions)
TP Southern Odisha Distribution Ltd (TPSODL)
TP Central Odisha Distribulion Ltd (TPCODL)
TP Western Odisha Distribution Ltd (TPWODL)
Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd (TPDDL)
TP Ajmer Distribution Limited (TPADL)
South East UP Power Transmission Company Limited (SEUPTCL)
Powerlinks Transmission Limited (PTL)
TP Power Plus Limited (TPPL)

E. Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlled Entities of Promoters of Holding Company - Promoter Group
{with whom the Company has tr ions)

Tata Capital Financial Services Limited (Tata Capital)

Tata AIG General Insurance (Tata AlG)

Tata Consultancy Services Limited (TCS)

Tata Steel Limited (TSL)

Neelachal Ispat Nigam Limited (NINL)

Tata Sponge Iron Limited (TSIL)

Tata Steel Mining Limited (TSML)

Tata Steel Long Products Limited (TSLPL)

F. Associates of Holding Company
Tata Projects Limited

G. Post retirement employee benefit trust
NESCO Employees Pension Trusl
NESCO Employees Gratuity Trust
NESCO Employees Provident Fund Trust
NESCO Employees Rehabilitation Fund Trust

H. Key management personnel
Chief Executive Officer
Dwijadas Basak (Appointed w.e.f. February 24, 2024)
Bhaskar Sarkar (Appointed w.e.f. April 01, 2021, Date of Cessation : February 23, 2024)

Chief Financial Officer
Siladitya Sengupta

Company Secretary
Devendra Prasad

. Non-executive directors
Mr. Pradeep Kumar Jena (Appointed w.e.f. April 11, 2023)
Mr. Nikunja Bihar Dhal (Appointed w.e.f. June 19, 2023, Date of Cessation : October 30, 2023)
Dr. Praveer Sinha
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Banga
Mr. Arup Ghosh
Mr. Trilochan Panda
Mr. Gagan Bihari Swain
Mr. Sanjeev Satyaprakash Gupta
Mr. Narendra Nath Misra (Appointed w.e.f. April 11, 2023)
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Singh (Appointed w.e.f. April 11, 2023, Date of Cessation : May 26, 2023)
Mr. Vishal Kumar Dev (Appointed w.e.f. November 21, 2023)
Mr. Suresh Chandra Mahapatra (Date of cessation : February 28, 2023)
Mr. Nipun Aggarwal (Date of cessation : April 18, 2022)
Mr. Kesava Menon Chandrasekhar (Date of cessation : February 19, 2023)

J. Independent Directors
Mr. Kailash Nath Shrivastava, IAS (Retd.)
Ms. Salya Gupta (Date of Cessation : July 31, 2023)
Dr. Arun Kumar Panda, 1AS (Retd.)
Mr. Ashok Kumar Tripathy
Mrs. Shefali Shah (Appointed w.e.f. October 20, 2023)
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Related party transactions and balances
a. Particulars of transactions with the relaied parties

S No. |Name of Related Party Nature of transactions Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Zin crores 2 in crores
1 Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd (TPDDL) Reimbursement of expense 0.02 -
Reimbursement of capex expenses and transfer of assets 0.10 0.05
Deputation of employees, IT and Contract Expenses 206 2.00
Staff related Liability/ Expenses ( Gratuity and EL/UL) 0.95 162
Reimbursement of Expenses(Education Loan & Insurance) 0.01 -
2 TP Central Odisha Distribution Ltd (TPCODL) Power purchase expenses (net of rebate) 0895 103
CSA Fees 1.18 -
Supply of materials = 0.80
Staff related Liability/ Expenses ( Gratuity and EL/UL) 1.08 0.10
Reimbursement of capex expenses and transfer of assets 0.01 .
Reimbursement of expenses 0.37 -
3 TP Western Odisha Distribution Ltd (TPWODL) Reimbursement of Expenses,supply of Materials 0.31
Staff related Liability/ Expenses ( Gratuity and EL/UL) 0.01 -
Reimbursement of capex expenses and transfer of assets 0.01 -
4 TP Southern Odisha Dislribution Ltd (TPSODL) Staff related Liability/ Expenses ( Gratuity and EL/UL) 0.20 0.23
5 GRIDCO Limited Power purchase expenses net of rebate 2,337.26 2,060.41
Issue of equity shares 81.29 50.57
6 Tata AlG General Insurance (Tata AlG) Procurement of services 946 5.05
7 TATA Capital Financial Services Limited (Tata capital) Procurement of goods/services 0.18 0.27
8 NESCO Employees Pension trust Contribution of Pension 110.35 103.72
9 NESCO Employees Gratuity trust Contribution of Gratuity 724 8.83
10 | NESCO Employees Provident Fund trust Contribution of Provident Fund 6.03 10.59
11 NESCO Employees Rehabilitation Fund trust Contribution of Rehabilitation Fund 0.30 -
12 | Compensation of Key management personnel of the Company Managerial remuneration and sitting fees™ 4.44 3.08
13 | Tata Consultancy Services Limited (TCS) Procurement of Intangible Assets 3.13 6.49
14 | Tata Steel Long Products Limited Staff related Liability/ Expenses ( Gratuity & EL/UL) 0.03 -
15 | South East UP Power Transmission Company Limited Reimbursement of Capex and Transfer of Assets 0.02 -
16 | Tata Projects Limited Sale of power (includes ED) - 0.20
17 | Tata Steel Limited (TSL) Sale of power (includes ED) 388.54 225.32
18 | Neelachal Ispat Nigam Limited (NINL) Sale of power (includes ED) 137.63 4565
19 | Tata Sponge Iron Limited (TSIL) Sale of power (includes ED) 0.08 1.15
20 | TP Ajmer Distribution Limited (TPADL) Procurement of goods/PPE/services 0.01 0.01
Staff related Liability/ Expenses ( Gratuity & EL/UL) + 0.91
21 | Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Reimbursement of expenses 0.03 0.06
Staff related Liability/ Expenses ( Gratuity & EL/UL) 1.93 214
Procurement of goods/PPE/services 0.87 1.14
Reimbursement of expenses (against ESOP) 0.28 -
Issue of equity shares 84.61 52.63
22 | Tata Sons Private Limited Procurement of goods/PPE/services 0.02 -
23 | Powerlinks Transmission Limited Procurement of goods/PPE/services 0.01 -
24 | TP Power Plus Limited Procurement of goods/PPE/services 0.01 -
25 | Tata Steel Utilities & infrastructure Services Ltd Staff related Liability/ Expenses ( Gratuity & EL/UL) = 0.02
26 | Tata Steel Mining Limited Sala of power fincludes EDY 136.01 102.89

“Provisians for gratuity, compensated absences and other long term service benefits are made for the Company as a whole and the amounts pertaining to the key
management personne! are not specifically identified and hence are not included above.




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLC035951
Januganj, Balasore, Odisha, India, 756019
Website: www.tpnodl.com; Email: contactus@tpnodl.com
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b. Particulars of O {ing Payable/ Receivable with the related parties: T in crores
f‘:’ Name of the Entity Nature of transactions Marc:sa:,tzoz 4 Marc: : 1:'1.[2023
1 |Share Capital
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Share capital 287.67 203.06
GRIDCO Limited Share capital 276.38 195.09
2 |Trade Payable
GRIDCO Limited Power Purchase Cost 360.79 348 09
TP Central Odisha Distribution Ltd (TPCODL) Power Purchase Cost 0.44 0.85
Tata Consultancy Services (TCS) Procurement of Intangible Assets 0.36 1.99
Tata AIG General Insurance (Tata AlIG) Procurement of services 0.04 011
Tata Power Dethi Distribution Ltd (TPDDL) Deputation, IT and Contract Expenses 0.01 -
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Procurement of goods/services / Reimbursement of expenses 0.79
Reimbursement of expenses (against ESOP) 028
3 |Deposit Received
Tata Steel Mining Limited Security Deposit reveived for sale of power 2253 2253
Tata Sponge Iron Limited (TSIL) Security Deposit reveived for sale of power 0.06 0.06
Neelachal Ispat Nigam Limited (NINL) Security Deposit reveived for sale of power 30.72 30.72
Tata Projects Limited (TPL) Security Deposit reveived for sale of power - 011
Tata Steel Ltd (TSL) Security Deposit reveived for sale of power 103.88 99.61
4 |Trade Receivable
Tata Steel Mining Limited Sale of power (includes ED) 293 518
Tata Sponge Iron Limited Sale of power (includes ED) - 0.01
Tata Steel Limited Sale of power (includes ED) * 0.00 -
5 |Other Receivable
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Graluity and Annual Leave / Procurement - 1.36
TP Central Qdisha Distribution Ltd (TPCODL) Procurement of goods/services B 1.00
Powerlinks Transmission limited (PTL) Procurement of goods/services 0.01 -
Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd (TPDDL) Procurement of goods/services 0.04 -
TP Power Plus Limited (TPPL) Procurement of goods/services 0.01 -
TP Westem Odisha Distribution Ltd (TPWQODL) Procurement of goods/services 0.01 -
6 |[Others
NESCO Employees Provident Fund Trust Contribution of PF 0.49

* 0.00 represents amount below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company

Note - Information about Core Investment Companies

The Group has five CICs which are registered with the Reserve Bank of India and two CICs which are not required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India
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NOTE 32 Ratio Analysis and its elements

. . . Reason for Variance
o
SINo Ratios Numerator Denominator Note March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023 % of Variance in excess of 25%
a) |Current Ratio {In times) Current Assets Current Liabilities A 0.92 085 8. 18%| NA
b) |Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity B 0.72 073 -164%]| NA
. Inlerest expense +
Debl Service Coverage Ratio T:ﬁ;::;er :jaex :elcnitaetiroer scheduled principal Tne ratio has decreased due to
c) N 9 P S+ dep repaymenl of long term Cc 415 6.92 -40.00%|availment of term loan in the current
(n Times) & amortisation - current i
tax expense debt and lease liabilities year
P during the year
d) |Retumn on equity ratio (%) Net Profit after taxes Average Sharefolders | 18.04% 24.18% -25,40%| The ratio has decrease due to infusion
Equity of equily during the current year
Average receivable
(including unbilled revenue
Trade Receivables Tumover and regulatory balances 49480
®) |Raiio (in number of days) wherever applicable) x Gross Sales 50:57 5776 12:8630) NA
number
of days
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (in Average trade payable x N " ”
) number of days) number of days Net credit purchases E 74.00 78.66 5.82% | NA
Revenue from operation Working capital = Tha ratio has increased due to increase
g) |Net capital turnover Ratio including net movement in Current assets — F (26.13) (10.82) 141.54%|In revenue and increase in current assel
Regulatory deferral balances Current liabilities due to better cash management
Profit before tax + interest | Average Capital employed
§ expense excluding interest {Shareholder’s equity + o N ~ o
h) |Retum on Capital Employed on consumer security Total Debt + Deferred tax G 18.89% 22.44% 15.84%| NA
deposit liability)
Revenue (including net
1) |Net Profit Ratio (%) Net Profit After Tax movement in regulatory 3.50% 3.43% 2.02%|NA
deferral balances)

-

Inventory turnover ratio and return on [nvestmant ratio Is not applicable to the Company.

2. As explained in note related to financial instruments, the Company has access to sufficient liquidity resources to continue its operations for at least 12 months from the date of approval of financial

statements.
Notes :

A. Current Assets and Current Liabilities as per balance sheet
B. Total Debt: Long term borrowings (including current maturities of long term borrowings), short term borrowings and interest accrued on these debts
Total Equity : Issued share capital and other equity
C  For the purpose of computation, scheduled principal repayment of long term borrowings does not include prepayments
Interest expenses is net of interest on consumer security deposits.

D Average Shareholders Equity: Issued share capital and other equity
Net credit purchases comprise of (a) cost of power purchased; (b) transmission charges and (c) Other expenses excluding (i) Bad debts (including provision);

m

(i) CSR expenses and (i) Transfer to Tariff Balancing Reserve

F  Working capital :

i} Current Assets: as per balance sheet
i) Current Liabililies as per balance sheet (excluding current maturities of long term debt and interest accrued on long term debts)
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Note 40 Disclosure regarding details of assets created with Government Fund and used by NESCO/TPNODL

As per last details provided by the Odisha Power Transmission Company Limited (OPTCL) vide email dated April 18, 2023, certain assets were created for NESCO
through different schemes formed by the government and executed by OPTCL. Based on details shared by OPTCL, the carrying amount of such assets as of March
31, 2024 is T 1473.54 crores (March 31, 2023: # 1554.83 crores) for completed assets and ¥ 232.93 crores (March 31, 2023: ¥ 232.93 crores) for work in progress

(WIP). These are subject to detailed verification and reconciliation by various authorities.

As per the Vesting Order, the ownership of these assets has not been transferred to the Company; however, it can continue to use these assets for supply of power to
the consumer. Since the Company is not able to charge any depreciation for these assets in the ARR, the fair value of these assets for the Company at the vesting

date is Nil. Details are given below:

As at March 31, 2024 ¥ in crores
Name of Scheme Completed WIP Total

Biju Grama Jyoti Yojana{BGJY OPTCL DTR) 34.89 - 34.89
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojana (DDUGJY) 446.49 = 446.49
Integrated Power Development Scheme (IPDS) 293.66 - 293.66
Integrated Power Development Scheme (IPDS-IT Phase il) 54.20 - 54.20
Odisha Distribution System Strengthening Project (ODSSP)* 503.42 132.80 636.22
Odisha Distribution System Strengthening Project (ODSSP) (Phase-1V) - 59.26 59.26
Odisha Dedicated Agricultural Fishery Feeder Project{ ODAFFP) 13.10 40.87 53.97
Soubhagya 124.27 - 124.27
Rajiv Gandhi Grameen Vidyulikaran Yojana 3.51 - 3.51
Total 1,473.54 232.93 1,706.47

*Excluding  81.29 crore and % 50.57 crore as it is a part of equity contribution by GRIDCO during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 .

As at March 31,2023 Z in crores
Name of Scheme Completed WIP Total

Biju Grama Jyoti Yojana(BGJY OPTCL DTR) 34.89 - 34.89
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojana (DDUGJY) 446.49 - 446.49
Integrated Power Development Scheme (IPDS) 293.66 - 293.66
Integrated Power Development Scheme (IPDS-IT Phase I1) 54.20 - 54.20
Odisha Distribution System Strengthening Project (ODSSP)* 584.71 132.80 717.51
Odisha Dedicated Agricultural Fishery Feeder = 59.26 59.26
Pradhan Mantri Sahaj Bijli Har Ghar Yojana — Saubhagya 13.10 40.87 53.97
Soubhagya 124.27 - 124.27
Rajiv Gandhi Grameen Vidyutikaran Yojana 3.51 - 3.51
Total 1,554.83 232.93 1,787.76

*Excluding  50.57 crore and ¥ 22.02 crore as it is a part of equity contribution by GRIDCO during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 .
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Note 41 Business Combinations

The Company has been incorporated on March 20, 2021 under the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended). Pursuant to vesting order issued by the OERC dated March 25,
2021 (‘'Vesting Order'), the Company acquired the business of distributing power in Northern Orissa ('Business’) from the NESCO with effect from April 1, 2021 ('Vesting
Date'). Accordingly, the Company is a licensee to carry out the function of distribution and retail supply of eleclricity covering the distribution circles Balasore, Bhadrak,
Baripada, Jajpur and Keonjhar in the state of Odisha for a period of 25 years effective from April 1, 2021.

The OERC has issued the Carve Out order dated November 25, 2021 to specify assets and liabilities transferred to the Company. The Carve Out order so issued by the
OERC acknowledges that underlying details are not available for certain assets and liabilities. In accordance with the Carve Out Order, these amounts have been
transferred to the Company and will continue to be its liabilities, and they cannot be paid without verification. These liabilities need to be verified through an external agency.
Once verified, the Company is obliged to discharge the same upon the OERC approval. These liabilities cannot be written off without the Board and the OERC approval,
Pending legal release, the Company continues to recognise these liabilities at the stated amount reflecting acquisition date fair values. In accordance with the vesting order,
any change in the value of assets and liabilities transferred on account of the reconciliation / resolution of the above matters and / or any other matter identified in future will
be allowed to be recovered by the Company in the manner specified in the vesting order, viz., by way of future tariff adjustment or adjustment to the grant liability. Hence,
the Company believes that the reconciliation / resolution of the above matters will not have any impact on the financial position and financial performance of the Company
as reflected in the financial statements.

(a) Carrying amount of security deposits (classified under note 23 in the Balance Sheet) as per the general ledger is higher by ¥ 27.99 crores as compared to balance as
per customer ledger.

(b) Vendor/customer details not available for the following items:
(i) Other receivable: ¥ 2.57 crores (Classified under Note 7 in the Balance Sheet)
(ii) Other receivable: ¥ 0.81 crores (Classified under Note 14 in the Balance Sheet)
(iiiy Other receivable:  12.85 crores (Classified under Note 10 in the Balance Sheet)
(iv)Grants receivable: ¥ 2.02 crores (Classified under Note 10 in the Balance Sheet)
(v) Advance to Others:  16.89 crores (Classified under Note 15 in the Balance Sheet)
(vi)Payable to Employees: ¥ 9.87 crores (Classified under Note 23 in the Balance Sheet)
(vii)Payable to Vendors: ¥ 39.60 crores (Classified under Note 22 in the Balance Sheet)
(viii)Retention money, Earnest money and Security deposit from others:  4.40 crores (Classified under Note 23 in the Batance Sheet)
(ix) Consumers Contribution for work: ¥ 105.72 crores (Classified under Note 23 in the Balance Sheet)

{c) NESCO did not have any process for identification of vendors as micro, small and medium enterprise (MSME) under the MSMED Act. Post-acquisition, the company
has initiated the process and rolled out MSME confirmation to all its vendors. Based on the responses received, the Company has identified MSME vendors and in the
process of ensuring necessary compliance with the MSMED Act.

The Company, with the NESCO management and the help of the OERC, is in the process of reconciliation/resolving the above matters and adjustments, if any, will be
recognised post reconciliation and resolution of the matters. As stated above, the vesting order provides that any change in the value of assets and liabilities transferred on
account of reconciliation/resolution of the above matters and/or any other matter identified in future will be allowed to be recovered by the Company in the manner specified
in the vesting order. Hence, the Company believes that the reconciliation/resolution of the above matters will not have any impact on the financial position and financial
performance of the Company as reflected in the financial statements.
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Note 42 Segment Information
The Company is engaged in the i ol distribution of power in Northem part of Odisha. Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the financial information of the
Company as a whole for decision making and accordingly the Company has a single reportable segment

There is no consumer from whom the Company has eamed more than 10% of revenue

Note 43 Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Company has not entered into any ion with struck off ies as p ibed under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013

Note 44 Other Statutory Information
(i) No proceedings has been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any Benami Property under the Benami Transactions(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder
(ii) There are no charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period
(iii) The Company have nol traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current and previous year
(iv) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that Lhe Company shall:
{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities in any manner
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ullimate Beneficiaries) or

(v) The Company have not any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(vi) The Company has not given any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and/ or relaled parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013),
either severally or jointly with any other person, that are repayable on demand, or without specifying any terms or period of repayment

(vit) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or linancial institution or other lender

(viii) The Company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number
of Layers) Rules, 2017 (as amended).

(ix) Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with the banks in connection with the working capital limit sanctioned are in agreement with the books of
account

(x) The tide deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are
held in the name of the Company.

(xi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Inter fiaries) with the ing that the
Intermediary shall
(a) directly ar mdirectly |and or inwest in other parsons or entities identi in any manner by or on behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries), or

(b) provide any gunranizs, seaurity or the like to ar an behalf of the ulimate beneficipries:

Note 45 Social Security Code

The code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code') relating to employee benefits during and past | benefits received Presedential consent in September 2020 The
Code has been published in the Gazette of India However, the date on which the code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rulesfinterpretation have nat yet been
issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the entity believes the impact of the change will not be significant

Note 46 Audit Trail

The Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares, except that audit trail feature is not enabled at the database level in sofar as it relates lo the SAP S$/4 HANA and CIS
application and/or the underlying HANA and DBZ database respecnvely

However stringent control pi were i d to effectively restrict direct changes to data thraughout the financial year. These procedures included thorough reviews of
logs and reconciliation of datasets and during the financial year no direct changes were made that impacied nahcial records. Further no instanca of audi trall feature being tampered
with was noted in respect of the accounting softwares.

Note 47 Significant events after the reporting period
There were no significant adjusting events after end of the reporting period which require any adj or dis in the financial to the
other than the events disclosed in the relevant notes

porting period
Note 48 Standards notified but not yet effective
There are no standarda that are notified and not yet effective 25 en the date

Note 49 Appl of
The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on April 19, 2024.
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